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GENERaL MaNaGER’S REPORT 
Our 150th year has experienced 
drought, fires and floods, and is 
currently in the midst of a global 
pandemic as I write on this 
year’s performance. It will likely 
go down as a year that many 
would like to forget.  
The first half of the year 
experienced record bar sales 
and continuous strong growth in 
memberships. This was followed 
by the closing of our doors on 23 
March 2020 due to the COVID-19 

pandemic. The temporary closure of the club was something 
that we never expected. Our doors would remain closed to 
members for a further 70 days, reopening on 1 June 2020. While 
this reopening was much earlier than first anticipated, our 
clubhouse seating was severely reduced to a third of its normal 
capacity with further closures imminent. Thankfully, the club was 
in a strong financial position on the back of a number of very 
successful trading years, however it is fair to say that the club’s 
cash resources did experience a substantial decline during this 
period.  
It is difficult to report the clubs worst financial result in many 
years after reporting a record result in the previous year. 
Unfortunately, this situation was unavoidable. The one constant 
during this time was our members. It was not only the positive 
words expressed during our closure but the strong support once 
we reopened our doors. This made the hard times so much 
easier and I feel it is important to thank our members for their 
support.
We were extremely proud to have retained all our staff during 
this period. While the typical workday looked a little different 
for a while, there was a positive feel as we actively served 
our members where possible and commenced a repairs and 
maintenance programs which witnessed the replacement 
of a beer glass with a paint brush. Amongst much work that 
was done, our project to refurbish the entry to our club was 
completed, just in time for the reopening of our doors.   
I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Dedes Group 
including Con and Kerrie Dedes and their team for their patience 
during a difficult year and delivering such a wonderful dining 
experience and being such a professional team for the club to be 
associated with.  
It is important to thank the exceptional SRC Board, management 
and staff who are strongly committed to the club, are highly 
passionate about our product and consistently provide high 
levels of support to both myself and the members.  
Once again, I thank the members for their ongoing support of 
SRC and look forward to getting the club back on track for a 
strong year to come.

Peter Grosvenor
General Manager

PRESIDENT’S MESSaGE
The season 2019-2020 will long 
be remembered for the heat, the 
bushfires, the smoke, and the 
pandemic.
It was a truly terrible season. 
The hottest summer ever 
and the worst bushfires ever 
impacted everybody. From a 
rowing standpoint, racing and 
training were affected from 
early December, with air quality 
preventing training and some 
regattas needing to be cancelled 

or curtailed. 
The club’s major camp, in Jindabyne and Perisher in early 
January, had to be relocated to Penrith at a few days’ notice due 
to the bushfire risk and the closure of Kosciuszko National Park. 
Our coaches and rowing members responded to the challenge, 
and the camp at Penrith was successful.
The NSW Championship Regatta in February went ahead but had 
to be abandoned early on the third day due to extreme winds. 
Many major races, for which our athletes had trained all season, 
were not rowed.
Finally, by early March, due to the risks of the COVID-19 
pandemic, all local, national and international rowing was 
cancelled. The National Regatta and national selection trials 
did not take place, and there was no interstate or international 
representation in rowing at any level. This was a hugely 
disappointing outcome for our active members, especially those 
selected to represent NSW in the Interstate Regatta and those 
with ambitions to represent Australia internationally, and who 
have trained hard for years to achieve their goals. 
In the club house, we closed the doors on 23rd March as the 
country went into shutdown. There began a period of complete 
uncertainty and much anxiety. As it turned out, the Australian 
and NSW Governments and the public health authorities have 
managed the crisis well.
The club was able to reopen after ten weeks. Our members and 
guests have been solid in their support for the club, and although 
we are currently operating under very specific social distancing 
measures as we learn to live with the pandemic, the club remains 
safe and is financially viable.  
During the shutdown, we provided ergometers and other items 
of gym equipment to our young active rowers so they could 
train at home. Once the restrictions on training began to ease, 
we were able to resume our rowing programme with limited 
rowing in single sculls, and more recently we were able to open 
the programme to bigger boats. Over the period of the shutdown 
and through winter, our coaches worked hard to keep our 
programme going and offer our members opportunities to train 
safely in accordance with social distancing guidelines, stay fit, and 
prepare for the new season.
I commend all of our staff, and particularly our General Manager 
Peter Grosvenor, for their efforts in keeping the club going under 
these highly unusual and unexpected circumstances. I also thank 
our caterers Con and Kerrie Dedes for their close cooperation 
and support over this period.
We have good reason to believe that better times are ahead. I 
wish all our members the very best of success and good health 
over the coming months.

Keith Jameson
President
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CaPTaIN’S REPORT
Fire, flood and pandemic – 2020 
was the rowing season that 
started by going up in smoke 
and then finished in solitary 
confinement.
Nonetheless, the indomitable 
Sydney rowers grafted and 
invented ways and means to 
express their passion for the 
sport and muddle their way 
through the calamity around 
them. Resilience became the 
main theme of athletes at SRC 
and the world over – everyone 

was remanded to the same stranded prison ship, replete with 
Concept2 and Wattbikes.
For most of our team, the forced hiatus was a time to recuperate, 
reflect and plan for the future. There will be other regattas, and 
time is on our side. But not for our elite members.
At the time of writing, we should have been in midst of the Tokyo 
Olympic competition. 
Our elite athletes reached the pinnacle of the sport at the 
sharp end of the Olympic cycle, but real life has thrown them a 
formidable test of their character and patience. Their heartbreak 
and frustration are great, and we must band around them until 
certainty and clarity returns, and they can once again feel ‘OK’.
I thank Simon Nola for his service to the club as Captain from 
2017 to 2019, during which time we achieved unparalleled 
success on the water and enjoyed a vibrant social and supporter 
scene. Simon’s work life curtailed the time he felt was due to 
the club in the role and he reluctantly stepped down. However, 
he was persuaded (blackmailed?) to bend the oar with the SRC 
Masters Eight for a campaign at the Head of the Yarra.
I thank Don and his coaching team for their extraordinary 
flexibility and inventiveness. The season was fueled with their 
ambition to build on the remarkable 2019 Henley campaign. 
However, all plans soon became moot.
The starting point was our annual tour to Melbourne for the 
Head of the Yarra, and the budding Sydney team put on stellar 
performances in the Schoolboy Eight (third), Schoolgirl Eight 
(Champions), Men’s Masters D Eight (Champions), Women’s 
Open Eight (fifth) and Men’s Open Eight – Champions for the 
third year running on the Upside Down River. Kendall Brodie 
steered the masters eight to a win, jumped the landing queue, 
raced to the start with Chairman Handley, and then took the 
reins with the Men’s Open Eight: a logistics gold medal feat in its 
own right. 
After the successful Head of the Yarra tour, the drive home 
through smoke and haze was the harbinger of a fiery summer. 
The December stage of annual camp went ahead as planned in 
the calm before the firestorm. The air was still clear in Jindabyne, 
whereas Sydney was shrouded in smoke. A productive week of 
training included a cameo appearance by Jeannine Gmelin. 
The team prepared to race; but time trials were cancelled, the 
Reindeer Regatta was curtailed due to smoke hazard, and the 
club elected to withdraw from the Sprint Championships, also 
due to smoke hazard.
That’s when the year went off the rails. Before Christmas, 
Kosciusko was closed by fire; two ‘rescue missions’ were 
mounted by Don, and then by Brendan, Franz and Jamie 
Thomson to recover the club’s fleet from Jindy. An exigency 
January camp was put together by the coaches at Nepean - where 
the river level was 12 inches below the step due to prolonged 
drought - and the Cliftons catered in a tent kitchen pitched in the 
motel carpark. Great food (as ever) fuelled everyone’s spirits and 
good progress was made toward building winning crews.

The rain gods spoke on the weekend of the NSW Rowing 
Championships on 7 February 2020. The fires were doused, the 
smoke cleared, and the flood rose. Sydney took to the water to 
establish its credentials. This was to be the last time our elites 
raced in 2020 and although they had a few shots in small boats, 
the regatta was cancelled in foul weather by 9:20 am on Sunday.
The standout performance of the event, and a highlight for the 
SRC season was the Women’s Under 21 Championship eight 
coached by Lachlan Carter. The Sydney boat, led by Issy Furrer 
and Lauren Graham and coxed by Hannah Cowap, leapt out of 
the blocks in a stiff tailwind, to smash out a record for the event 
on the course in 6:26, winning ‘easily’ in Henley parlance.
The Sydney regatta went ahead on 22 February with the usual 
great turn-out of members past and present to volunteer, making 
the regatta the best event on the calendar. The Sydney team 
started to feel the heat from our Lane Cove rivals, and some 
weaknesses were exposed.
The Uni lion roared the following weekend at the Gold Cup. Our 
top eights drew good lanes for their finals, however their events 
were spoiled somewhat by leisure craft washes, and we had to 
settle for second place in both Gold Cup championship races. 
Our men’s masters eight achieved their third in a row win at the 
Gold Cup.
Passion to prevail was ignited in the Sydney camp, but the Gold 
Cup turned out to be the Grand Final for 2020. The COVID-19 
Pandemic arrived in Sydney and all further regattas were 
cancelled. But not before a cheeky GPS Head of the River regatta 
snuck through the embargo on a Tuesday afternoon, resulting in 
an historic win for Scots, with Sydney expat Jason Baker at the 
controls of their coach boat.
The pandemic brought an end to our sesquicentenary 
celebrations, it cancelled the national championships, it 
prevented Henley and postponed the Olympics and Paralympics. 
It forced our athletes out of their jobs, out of university and out 
of school. It sent our five British Gappies home from whence 
they came. Erik Horrie, a champion for whom adversity is no 
stranger, showed the way for everyone who thought they had it 
bad. He just kept banging away on the erg and broke every world 
record in the book. 
I wish Franz Imfeld great success in his new venture back on 
the Thames at Molesey Boat Club and look forward to meeting 
him again in battle at Henley 2021. Thanks for the leadership, 
technique and organization you invested in Sydney for the two 
years with us.
Thank you to Keith Jameson and Steve Handley for their 
leadership of the Board which held the club together well 
despite the difficulties of the past year. Thank you to Peter 
Grosvenor and his excellent team at the club, including our 
partners the Dedes Group. Our sound financial and operational 
capability has allowed us to weather the storms of the past year.
Let’s now look forward to a reboot of Sydney’s Sesquicentenary, 
Henley and the Tokyo Olympics, 2021!

Stephen Graham
Captain
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2020 aUSTRaLIaN REPRESENTaTIVES
The following members were named on 7 March 2020 in 
the Australian squads to compete in World Cups 2 and 3 and 
the Final Olympic and Paralympic Qualification Regattas. 
Subsequently, all international regattas were cancelled due to the 
pandemic.

Women’s Sweep 

Leah Saunders

Men’s Sweep
Sam Hardy, Josh Hicks, Angus Moore, Spencer Turrin

Men’s Sculling
David Watts

Leah Saunders in NTC Colours

2020 STaTE TEaM REPRESENTaTIVES
The following members were named in NSW squads, prior to 
the announcement on 14th March 2020 that the National and 
Interstate Regatta 2020 was cancelled.

PR3 Men’s Single Scull 
Ben Gibson, Coach Franz Imfeld

Bicentennial Cup Women’s Youth Eight
Isabelle Furrer, Lauren Graham, Sophia Carmody, India 
Thomson, Cox: Hannah Cowap, Coach: Lachlan Carter

Wilkinson Cup Men’s Youth Eight
Torun Olsson, Oscar Carr-Middleton, Harry Crouch, Cox: Nick 
Dunlop, Assistant Coach: Franz Imfeld 

Queen’s Cup Women’s Eight
Leah Saunders, Harriet Hudson, 

King’s Cup Men’s Eight
Sam Hardy, Spencer Turrin, Angus Moore (Reserve), Kendall 
Brodie (Cox), Donovan Cech (Coach), Jason Baker (Assistant 
Coach)
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Champion Women’s Under 21 Eight of NSW Grace Sypher, Evie Thomson, Ingrid Holtheuer, Niamh Graham, Sophia Carmody, India 
Thomson, Lauren Graham, Isabelle Furrer, Cox: Hannah Cowap

SRC winning the Champion Women’s Under 21 Eight of NSW          
Photo: Rowing NSW
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YVONNE ELLIS aWaRD
Most Outstanding Oarswoman

Leah Saunders is our Most Outstanding Oarswoman for the 
seventh year in a row. Whilst Leah has been at the Hancock 
Prospecting National Training Centre for the past four years, she 
has remained an inspiration for our young women. With her eyes 
set on Tokyo, Leah continues to remain true to her Sydney roots 
and the club’s ethos by continually encouraging the athletes 
whether it be a few words shouted as she passes by on the 
Nepean River or sending messages of support.

Sadly, the international and domestic racing season was cut 
short this year and so Leah was unable to fully illustrate her hard 
work and dedication. Even more unfortunate was the fact that 
the NSW State Championships, which ended up being the last 
Championship regatta of the 2019-2020 season, was also cut 
short due to horrendous weather. However, she still managed 
to gain an impressive second place in the Championship 
Women’s Elite Four and fifth in an extremely tough final of the 
Championship Women’s Elite Pair. 

Leah also continues to illustrate the effect of hard work and 
determination, as she won silver in the Australian Women’s Eight 
at the 2019 World Championships, one place better than in 2018. 
This secured Australia’s place in the Women’s Eight for the Tokyo 
Olympics. After an intense period of uncertainty during the 
beginning stages of COVID-19, Leah also secured a spot in the 
Australian rowing team, a place which we have no doubt she will 
be able to secure once more next year. 

Whilst Australia and the world have been in a state of uncertainty, 
Leah has continued her intense training as her Olympic goal is 
now within her grasps. Everyone at Sydney wishes Leah all the 
best throughout these challenging times and we are excited to 
see what she can achieve in 2021.

Brianna Caputo

Josh Hicks and Sam Hardy   Photo: Rowing Australia

PHIL CaYZER aWaRD
Most Outstanding Oarsman 

This award was won by Josh Hicks and Sam Hardy. 

A Bronze Medal at the World Championships in a pair is no mean 
feat! Having won a few of my own, I know it’s reward enough 
when having to take on the world’s greatest sweep rowers in 
a small boat, where there is nowhere to hide! In the case of 
Josh and Sam, taking on Olympic Gold Medallists, the Sinkovic 
brothers of Croatia, at the 2019 World Rowing Championships 
would have been a monumental task but they held their own to a 
truly respectable third place and in doing so, capped themselves 
as the most successful Australian men’s rowing crew at the event. 
Having been moved from the Coxless Four, World Champions 
in 2017 and 2018, Josh showed his mettle and resolve and 
consolidated his season with his ex-Harvard peer Sam Hardy 
to produce this result. For Sam it was sweet success, in his first 
season at the men’s National Training Centre and his first Senior 
World Championships.  

The result also won them the Male Crew of the Year title at 
Rowing Australia’s 2019 Hancock Prospecting Rower of the Year 
Awards ceremony, yet another accolade. 

Both these men have represented Sydney Rowing Club with 
distinction in the past season and can always be relied upon to 
race their hearts out for the club, no matter how big or small the 
event.

Good combinations are hard to crack and the valuable time that 
Sam and Josh have had to train in the pair will no doubt put them 
in good stead for Olympic selection once again in 2021 as we wait 
out yet another season to see our men win medals in Tokyo. 

Donovan Cech
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Champion Women’s Under 21 Sculler of NSW: India Thomson

W J GOULDING aWaRD 
Most Improved Rower and

JOHN HaCKETT TROPHY 
Most Points in the Rowing NSW Season

It brings me great pleasure to 
announce India Thomson as the 
winner of these two awards for 
this season. I could not think of 
anyone who deserves it more as 
she has devoted much of her 
time to becoming better every 
day to achieve the goals that she 
set before the season began.

India started rowing for SRC in 
2017 while in Year 11 at Pymble 
Ladies College. She was a 
member of the Junior Quad that 

competed at Henley Women’s Regatta and Holland Beker Regatta 
in Amsterdam that year. The following year India was in SRC’s 
first ever crew to compete in the Diamond Jubilee Challenge 
Cup (Junior Women’s Quad) at Henley Royal Regatta. Each of 
these international experiences early in India’s rowing career 
taught her a lot about hard work and commitment to improving 
every step of the way. She has won numerous State and National 
medals including the outstanding victory in the 2019 Interstate 
Regatta in the NSW Youth Eight. 

With countless great results in crew boats, India set her sights 
on achieving success in an individual capacity for season 2020. 
India has always been a real team player but there was now a 
burning desire to achieve something great for herself. She started 
the season with the goal of racing as a lightweight in her final 
Under 21 year but she wasn’t able to maintain her strength, and 
injuries started to hold her back. After considering all options, 
a decision was made that India would back herself and take 
on the heavyweight Under 21 category. She’s always been very 
competitive and being the underdog suited her just fine. 

The Small Boat Regatta was the first major selection event for our 
youth rowers. India had never been a particularly fast starter in 
races and found herself at the back of the field in the Under 21 
single until a fantastic middle 1000m put her into third place to 
gain selection into the NSW Youth Eight for the second year in a 
row. 

With plenty of work to do before the NSW Championships, India 
worked incredibly hard to make the necessary improvements 
so that she could hold her own against all of the best Under 
21 scullers attending from around the country. At only 60kg, 
India progressed nicely through the heats to earn her place in 
the Under 21 Final. India had to trust her rhythm and fitness 
to patiently close the gap on the race leaders which included 
SRC’s Sophia Carmody who bravely lead to the 1000m mark. 
India came back from fifth place at the 500m mark and as the 
last 500m approached, she slipped into third and then into first 
with 250m to go. Anyone who knows India will tell you that she 
is one relentless and tough athlete and once in front, she refuses 
to let anyone row through her. As soon as India took the lead, 
she hung on for a gutsy win to become the Under 21 Champion 
Sculler of New South Wales. To cap off a great weekend, SRC won 
the Under 21 Eight by almost 8 seconds including India in the 
six seat. India was an integral part of this team and showed her 
versatility with a sweep oar.

After an impressive trial run in an Under 23 pair with Romola 
Davenport at the SRC regatta, the season unfortunately came to 
a sudden end with COVID-19 spreading throughout the world 
just prior to the National Championships. India had shown a 
remarkable ability to compete well in sculling and sweep and 
we have no doubt that she would have performed well at the 
National Championships in March. Without a shadow of a doubt 
India is our most improved rower for 2020 and as a result of all 
of her hard work she has also won the most points of any rower 
at SRC this year. Congratulations on your success this year India 
and all the best for season 2021.

Lachlan Carter
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Aside from this, he is also a superb rower, having competed and 
medalled for Australia at the Under 21 Trans-Tasman event and 
currently looking to be selected for the Under 23 team in 2021. 
Alex has been a stalwart of SRC’s Henley campaigns since he 
first joined the club, and in 2019, he was a key component in the 
Wyfold coxless four, winning that event for SRC, for the first time 
since 2009.

Alex is always the first to volunteer, especially shown during the 
bush fires this season, helping in the challenge of returning our 
fleet to Sydney from Jindabyne, (despite his mother’s protests!). 
We are very excited to see what he can achieve this season, both 
for SRC and himself; and no matter what, he will do it with a 
smile on his face, ready to help at a moment’s notice.

franz Imfeld

GEORGE SCHNELLER aWaRD
for the Rowers’ Rower of the Season

The George Schneller Award was 
re-purposed last year so that we 
can recognise each year a 
member who embodies the 
club’s values and who has been a 
role model to other members in 
the contribution he or she has 
made to the culture of the club 
both on and off the water. This 
award is determined by a vote 
amongst the active rowers.

In the second year of this award, 
I am honoured to announce 

that Alex ‘Pichol’ Nichol has been selected by the athletes as the 
rower who most embodies Sydney Rowing Club’s winning spirit 
as well as being an all-round top bloke!

Over his time at the club, Alex has set an example of how to be, 
as a person and as a rower. He is kind caring and compassionate, 
taking time to get to know any new members, young or old. Most 
recently, he took on a mentoring role on camp with the juniors, 
guiding them in their training on and off the water. He is happy 
to jump in any boat and has been invaluable in engaging school 
leavers and SRC juniors to help them make the step up to the 
youth squad.

alex Nichol at the NSW Championships   Photo: Rowing NSW
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SPECIaL aWaRD Of MERIT
for Novice Rowing

It would be easy to attribute 
Henry furrer’s rapid progression 
in rowing to his God given 
physical characteristics. 
However, the rowing world is 
full of people who are tall and 
strong, so physicality is hardly a 
defining feature. 

Henry was introduced to me by 
his sister Issy in early 2019 as 
a learn-to-row candidate. I will 
be frank: at the time I was not 
overly enthused about the idea 

of teaching another overgrown and uncoordinated prospect how 
to row. It only took a couple of sessions to notice that he was cut 
from something different than most. He wanted to learn without 
restriction or limitation, and he wanted to be the best, right now, 
without delay. 

Six months into his novice year, Henry finished third place in the 
Under 19 single scull at his first regatta, the Newcastle Uni Pre 
IV Regatta. Henry’s competitors in first and second place would 
surely have been slightly perplexed by Henry’s unconventional 
approach of catching a crab every stroke, but hey, each to 
their own. One month later, after re-examining this approach, 
Henry won the Novice Single Scull by a margin of 39 seconds 

at the Spring Regatta. Three months later, in January 2020, his 
performance at the Small Boat Regatta in the Under 21 single 
scull placed him in consideration for the NSW Youth Eight squad.  

At the NSW Championships, Henry was a member of a scratch 
SRC crew that claimed an epic bronze medal in the Men’s Under 
19 Coxed Four. Additionally, Henry combined with club mate 
Gordon Appelcryn to win their heat of the Men’s Under 19 
Double Scull, before the final was cancelled due to dangerous 
weather conditions. Further, his position as the top ranked 
New South Welshman in the Men’s Under 19 Single Scull, 
indicated that a podium finish in the same event at the National 
Championships would have been a viable and realistic outcome, 
especially when considering his accelerating progress and 
development. 

There is not much one can say about how the season ended 
really. What could have been will never be properly known. 
I know what Henry was capable of, and I know the standard 
he was up against. National selection was not an unrealistic 
outcome. 

I hope Henry looks back on his novice year with immense pride, 
not only in his results but in the process. I hope he never lets go 
of the ability to keep moving forward with great optimism and 
he remains staunch in the high expectations he has of himself 
and of those around him. I hope, in the end, regardless of the 
long-term outcome, he knows that he conducted himself like a 
true champion and continues to hold his head high amongst any. 

Brendan Longman

Henry furrer at the Sydney Rowing Club Regatta
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Men’s Under 21 Eight Alex Pikelis, Miles Devereux, Tom Galloway, Max Pearce, Alex Potter, Harry Crouch, Oscar Carr-Middleton, 
Torun Olsson, Cox: Nick Dunlop

Men’s Under 21 Eight Bronze medallists and resident NSW champions   Photo: Rowing NSW
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Grace Sypher racing at the Small Boat Regatta

DRUMMOYNE ROTaRY CLUB
Community Spirit award

This year we are proud to 
recognize Kendall Brodie with 
the Drummoyne Rotary Club 
Award for her unstinting support 
of the club and her colleagues. 
Kendall has reached the pinnacle 
of this sport as a coxswain, and 
her success in that role is due to 
her professional application and 
calm, competent manner. She 
throws herself into opportunities 
to contribute to the community 
within our club, such as 

organizing and leading the sometimes-ungainly gaggle of rowers 
and volunteers in activities from crew kit, to working bees, to 
rowing camps. A highlight for this rower was to win the Head of 
the Yarra with Kendall in command of the Masters Eight, which 
elicited a consummate performance of navigation and ‘mind 
control’ on her part to steer us through eight boats to the finish 
line. She then returned to the start with minutes to spare and, 
unflustered, took control of the Sydney Open Eight to win the 
Head of the Yarra for the third year in a row. Congratulations 
Kendall on this award!

Steve Graham

Photo: Jenny Cole

aLf DUVaL TROPHY
Most Outstanding Junior

Grace Sypher is our most 
outstanding junior of 2020. 
Grace completed her schooling 
at Rockhampton Grammar 
before heading down south to 
join Sydney Rowing Club for her 
final Junior rowing year. Right 
from the get-go Grace showed 
the utmost commitment to her 
goal of making the Australian 
Junior Team in 2020. Moving 
town and taking on the 
challenge of training hard, and 

familiarising oneself with strange places and new faces is not easy 
but she did it in her stride. 

Grace won the Under 19 Single at the NSW Small Boats 
regatta and went on to win a silver medal at the NSW State 
Championships, in the company of the best junior women in 
Australia. But perhaps her greatest contribution to the club 
came in her big boat skills. Grace was a part of the SRC Women’s 
Under 21 Eight which convincingly won gold at the NSW State 
Championships, a repeat of a feat attained early in the season by 
Grace as a member of the Sydney Rowing Club Junior Women’s 
eight which won the Head of the Yarra Junior Women’s division 
in Melbourne.

The pandemic put an end to all international competition. It was 
a great disappointment that we couldn’t witness Grace attain 
her goal of racing in the Green and Gold at the World Junior 
Championships as she honestly was one of our most consistent 
trainers across the board this season and would have, without 
doubt, shown her worth at the Junior Trials and beyond. As 
the saying goes though, the training miles are “in the bank” 
and will be the foundation for further successes in the Under 
21 and Under 23 realms in either lightweight or heavyweight 
events, which Grace has the liberty of choosing between in the 
forthcoming seasons.

Donovan Cech
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Champion Men’s Coxless four of NSW: Alex Hill [ADEL], Jack Hargreaves [SUBC], Spencer Turrin [SRC], Alex Purnell [SUBC]

R J DaLEY aWaRD
Highest Point Score for a Coxswain 

Nick Dunlop is the recipient of 
this season’s RJ Daley award. 
Nick hails from Shore which has 
long been a source of successful 
coxswains for the club. Nick’s 
season started off the back of 
some fine work in coxing our 
SRC Britannia Coxed Four to a 
semi-final berth at the 2019 
Henley Royal Regatta. He went 
on to steer a number of our 
pathway crews to major 
performances in the 2020 season 

including a bronze medal in the NSW Men’s Under 21 Eights race 
in which we were the top performing NSW club, as well as a gold 
medal in the Under 21 Men’s Coxed Fours. As his award suggests, 
Nick has put his hand up on many occasions over the past year 
and has been an invaluable asset in our men’s youth pathway 
group at the club.

Donovan Cech

fRaNK HIDDEN aWaRD
for Service to the Club 

This year we are pleased to make the Frank Hidden Award to 
Jamie Thomson for his service to the club as a volunteer and avid 
fund raiser. Jamie has been a long-term supporter of Sydney as 
a parent, following his daughters on their numerous tours and 
now earning representational honours. Jamie and Fiona have 
always been ready to support the various activities of the club 
such as the Regatta and Henley Fundraisers, which are mammoth 
tasks. This year, Jamie stepped into the breach with one day’s 
notice to drive to Jindabyne in the middle of the bushfire crisis 
to rescue our fleet of boats and return them to the club. For this 
and for Jamie’s enduring support to SRC, we thank him.

Steve Graham

MICHaEL MORGaN TROPHY
Most Significant Contribution by an Honorary Coach
This trophy was not awarded this year. The Board will be keen to 
see a greater involvement of honorary coaches in the club in the 
new season. The opportunity for volunteering is an important 
part of a balanced rowing programme.

BILL aNDREWS aWaRD
Highest Point Score for a Masters Rower in the Rowing  
NSW Season

Despite the shortened season there were still a number of 
masters races rowed at regattas until they were cancelled due to 
Covid 19, and guess who was racing and winning – Ken Ambler.

Ken is well known around the club over his many years as a 
member. He has been involved in coaching many of our junior 
and also some our more mature rowers during this time. 

It is fair to say that Ken is very competitive and always willing to 
jump in a boat and race whenever possible. This season was no 
different, he rowed with many of his fellow rowers from various 
clubs in a number of classes of boats with great success.

Congratulations and well done Ken.  

Scott Turner

GEOff KNIGHT TROPHY
Most Outstanding Lightweight Rower

The club has a strong tradition in lightweight rowing and many 
successful athletes have won this award. With fewer athletes 
competing in lightweight rowing this year, the Board decided not 
to make an award. It is to be hoped that we will soon build up 
our numbers and again become a competitive club in lightweight 
rowing. 
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Erik Horrie at the Small Boat Regatta

ERIK HORRIE OaM aND JaSON BaKER 
OaM

We congratulate Erik Horrie and his coach Jason Baker who 
received awards in the Order of Australia in the 2020 Australia 
Day Honours List. 

Erik and Jason are well-known to SRC members. 

Erik took up rowing in 2011 in the lead up to the 2012 London 
Paralympics and has been a regular fixture on the National Team 
since then. He quickly rose through the National and World 
rankings to gain the Silver in London. 

Since joining Sydney Rowing Club in 2013, Erik has a great deal 
of success, winning World Championships in 2013, 2014, 2015, 
2017, and 2018, and a Silver Medal at the 2016 Rio Paralympics. 

These, along with numerous World Cup, National and State 
titles make Erik one of Australia’s most talented and successful 
athletes. 

At the top end of the sport, Erik faces gruelling competition from 
a small group of rivals who race against each other every year. 
He is noted for his consistency in racing, his focus, and his ability 
to maintain his composure, row to a plan, and keep ahead of his 
rivals no matter what happens on the day. 

Erik’s determination to succeed, and ability to communicate the 
power of sport to change lives, make him a role model for all 
athletes, and a great ambassador for our sport.

Erik was awarded Life Membership of Sydney Rowing Club 
in 2018 and he is a member of the Rowing Australia Athletes’ 
Commission.

Since 2013, Erik has been coached by Jason Baker. Jason’s 
exceptional coaching has been vital to Erik’s success. Jason 
has the experience necessary to understand and overcome the 
particular problems associated with para-rowing at an elite level. 

Jason has a parallel career as a development coach of 
elite rowers. He was highly successful as the club’s Senior 
Development Coach. Jason coached or co-coached numerous 
successful Sydney Rowing Club crews. His achievements while 
at Sydney Rowing Club included coaching three winning NSW 
eights in the Interstate Men’s Under 21 Championships (the 
Wilkinson Cup), and twice gaining selection to coach Australian 
crews at the World Junior Rowing Championships. Over the five 
years to 2018, Jason was one of the leading coaches of men’s 
Under 19 and Under 21 crews in Australia. Jason is now Senior 
Coach at The Scots College, and his First Eight this year was 
successful in winning the GPS Head of the River.

Jason Baker and Erik Horrie   Photo: Rowing Australia
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fINaNCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
It is my pleasure to report that for 
the 2020 financial year the club 
achieved a net operating surplus of 
$159,647 ($559,896 in 2019). This 
result was directly affected by the NSW 
Government implementing various 
measures to control the spread of 
COVID-19 in the hospitality industry. 
This resulted in the club being placed 
into shutdown from the 23 March to 1 

June 2020. 

Despite the club being unable to trade for this period it was 
pleasing to still achieve the surplus. Whilst the surplus has been 
reduced the club continues to be in a strong and stable financial 
position. This is reflected in the amount of cash held at year end 
which is in excess of $1.3m.

The club became eligible for a number of government support 
programs and with strategies introduced to deal with the 
environment that the club was facing, a strong financial position 
has been maintained.    

The club’s gross revenue for the year was $4,775,076 ($5,871,778 
in 2019). Gross Bar and Gaming revenues remained strong. 
Surpluses were achieved for Bar and Gaming during the year of 

$1,000,564 ($1,438,326 in 2019) and $338,187 ($578,119 in 2019) 
respectively. Expenses relating to the club house operations 
totalled $1,718,682,a decrease of $20,104 from 2019. 

Administration expenses increased by 4%. Club House and 
Grounds expenses decreased by 5% despite increased costs 
associated with insurance, electricity and depreciation. 

The operating surplus for the year includes a depreciation charge 
of $625,611. This charge relates to the club’s buildings, plant and 
equipment and fleet.

On a cash flow basis, the club generated from its operating 
activities $796,728 after interest of $814. The cash held at year 
end totalled $1,397,012. This strong financial position has 
enabled the club during the year to fund through cash flow the 
purchase of gaming machines, additions to the boat fleet, and 
repairing and maintaining the clubhouse and boatshed.

I take this opportunity to thank the club’s staff for all their 
efforts during the year, and in particular the way they dealt 
with the issues being faced during the shutdown period. To the   
members, many thanks for their support and patronage which 
assisted the club achieving  the results this year in what has been 
a difficult trading period.

Scott Turner 
Finance Director

 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
 $ $ $ $ $
Gross Revenue  4,775,076 5,871,778 5,444,110 5,524,313 5,575,527  ___________________________________________________________
Income Contribution      

  Bar  1,000,564 1,438,325 1,137,388 1,118,783 1,123,291

  Poker Machines  338,187 578,117 554,364 545,108 565,232

  Catering  590,336 666,012 673,436 665,877 634,334

  Interest Received  6,606 8,897 5,402 3,441 5,378

  Keno 5,598 8,638 7,876 9,970 14,713

  Other Income  354,673 76,509 25,496 38,139 41,606  ___________________________________________________________
 2,295,934 2,776,498 2,403,963 2,381,318 2,384,554

     

Less: Expenses applicable to above   1,718,682 1,738,786 1,709,626 1,740,518 1,659,433  ___________________________________________________________

Surplus from Club House Operations  577,251 1,037,712 694,336 640,800 725,121  ___________________________________________________________

Add: Subscriptions  303,486 278,856 289,201 317,722 329,568

Donations and Sponsorship  4,304 4,650 3,308 5,089 5,428  ___________________________________________________________
     

Surplus from Club House Operations 

and Non-operating Income 880,737 1,316,568 983,537 958,522 1,054,689  ___________________________________________________________

Less: Rowing Expenses  723,672 757,370 704,967 734,971 642,675

Add: Net Income from 

Events and Fundraising  2,581 694 (2,520) 848 (3,623)  ___________________________________________________________
Operating Surplus  159,646 559,892 276,050 224,399 408,391  ___________________________________________________________    ___________________________________________________________

 

 

 

 



17

Sydney Rowing Club Limited
ABN 12 000 995 746

Directors

Your directors present their report on the company for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. The names of the directors in 
office at any time during the financial year, or since the end of the year are:      

K. E. Jameson (appointed 01/05/1979)     

S. Handley  (appointed 19/09/2004)     

M. Morgan  (appointed 17/09/2006)     

D. Sollom  (appointed 17/06/2006)     

S. Turner  (appointed 23/09/2007)     

K. Liljeqvist  (appointed 29/09/2013)     

S. Thiebe  (appointed 08/04/2016)     

S. Nola   (appointed 29/05/2017 and resigned 16/09/2019)     

S. Graham  (appointed 15/04/2019)     

B. Caputo  (appointed 22/09/2019)     

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report.     

Company secretary

The following person held the position of company secretary at the end of the financial year:     
Peter Grosvenor was appointed secretary on 20 April 2009. Peter has worked in the hospitality industry for over 30 years with 
the last 24 years in the club industry.      

Principal activities

The principal activity of Sydney Rowing Club Limited is to promote the sport of rowing and provide members and their guests 
with the amenities and facilities usually associated with a sporting club. No significant changes in the nature of these activities 
have occurred during the year.      

The entity’s short-term objectives are:

-  To expand the number of members competing in the sport and to aim for the highest standards of performance.

-  To provide a high level of club house services that meet the needs of the local community.     

The entity’s long term objectives are:

-  To promote the sport of rowing.      

-  To provide for members and guests a social and sporting club with all the usual facilities of a registered club.  

To achieve these objectives the entity has adopted the following strategies:

-  The club has identified a range of programs that match the requirements of the active rowing members, and endeavours 
to provide the necessary level of equipment, coaching and support to the members to permit them to be successful at the 
highest possible level.      

- The club attracts and retains quality staff that are committed to providing quality service to the members.

-  The club regularly reviews the club’s facilities, customer needs and industry trends, to ensure the registered club meets 
the needs of members and the local community.      

Operating results

The net surplus of Sydney Rowing Club Limited amounted to $159,647 (2019: $559,892).  

COVID 19

The NSW Government implemented various measures to control the spread of COVID-19. This resulted in the club being 
placed into shutdown on the 23 March 2020. The Club reopened on 1 June 2020 under reduced control measures, affecting 
two thirds of its potential seating capacity. With very little revenue received during the shutdown period, the club stood 
down all casual employees, with permanent employees either moving to reduced hours or utilising leave entitlements. The 
club became eligible for Government support programs such as the Jobkeeper scheme, gaming tax deferrals, payroll tax 

DireCTOrs’ rePOrT
FOr The year enDeD 30 June 2020   
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reductions and PAYG cash boosts. Along with placing many contracted services on hold and obtaining rent relief on the club’s 
foreshore lease with RMS, the club was able to substantially control the financial losses during this period. After reopening on 
1 June 2020, a large portion of casual employees resumed employment and revenues reached 70% of previously budgeted 
levels. Control measures were further reduced on 1 July 2020 resulting in two thirds of seating becoming available. With the 
assistance of the Jobkeeper program and likely increases in trading potential, all permanent staff resumed full-time duties. 

Key performance measures

The company measures its own performance through the use of both quantitative and qualitative benchmarks. The 
benchmarks are used by the directors to assess the financial sustainability of the company and whether the company’s 
short-term and long-term objectives are being achieved.      

   2020 2019
   actual Benchmark actual Benchmark

Members
Number of members 13,303 13,500 12,813 13,500

Number of rowing members  147 150 140 150

staff
Number of management 7 7 7 7

Turnover of management 0% 15% 0% 15%

Operational and financial
Annual Financial Indicators:
Total net profit $159,647   $242,052   $559,892   $287,861 

Gaming net profit $338,189   $550,631   $578,119   $552,591 

Beverage net profit $1,000,564   $1,329,376   $1,438,325   $1,198,424 

Catering licence revenue $434,451   $481,472   $471,272   $469,612 

Membership subscription revenue $303,486   $280,115   $278,856   $310,000 

Proportion of funding spent on:    

Rowing program $723,672   $779,037   $757,293   $748,250 

Elite athlete support $43,479   $40,000   $44,122   $40,000 

Staff training $6,273   $7,200   $6,737   $8,600 

information on Directors

Director Office holdings Occupation Qualification and experience

K. E. Jameson President Retired BA (Accounting) CPA, member since 1962, director since  
   1979, member of the Building, Finance and Regatta   
   committees.   

S. Handley Vice President Company Director Background in banking and electronics engineering,  
   member since 1970, director since 2004, member of the  
   Finance and Regatta Committees, school and club coach  
   since 1979. Background in banking and electronics   
   engineering, member since 1970, director since 2004,   
   member of the Finance and Regatta Committees, school  
   and club coach since 1979.  

M. Morgan Vice President Retired Teacher for 25 years, and professional rowing coach,   
   member since 1964 and director since 2006. 

D. Sollom Director Company Director Member since 1957, Honorary Treasurer 1981 to 1988,   
   director since 2007, member of the Finance and Building  
   committees.   

S. Turner Finance Director Chartered Accountant Bachelor of Business, member since 1980, director since  
   2007, member of the Finance Committee.  

DireCTOrs’ rePOrT (COnTinueD)
FOr The year enDeD 30 June 2020 
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K. Liljeqvist Director Accountant B. Bus (Land Economy) Grad. Dip. Accounting, CPA.   
   Member since 1997, member of the Finance Committee.  
 

S. Thiebe Director Engineer Business owner for twelve years, member of the   
   Communications Committee.   

S. Nola Captain Compliance Manager Grad dip Corp law, BA, member since 2001, director from  
 (to 16/9/19)  2004-2009.   

S. Graham Vice Captain Engineering Manager BE (Aerospace) and RAAF Pilot, MBA, 15 years in Defence  
 (to 16/9/19)  and commercial aerospace industry, then 15 years in   
 Captain  power generation and energy businesses. 
 (from 16/9/19)

B. Caputo Vice Captain Student Bachelor of Law. Currently studying for a bachelor   
   of commerce majoring in business economics.    
   Member of the sesquicentenary regatta committee and   
   communications committee. 

Meetings of Directors
During the financial year, 22 meetings of directors were held. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows: 

K. E. Jameson 22 S. Turner 19 S. Nola 3*

S. Handley 18 K. Liljeqvist 21 S. Graham 20

M. Morgan 20 S. Thiebe 19 B. Caputo 11^ 

D. Sollom 20    

* retired in the year.

^ appointed in the year.

The entity is incorporated under the Corporation Act 2001 and is an entity limited by guarantee. If the entity is wound up, 
the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $2 each towards meeting any outstanding 
obligations of the entity. At 30 June 2020, the total amount that members of the company are liable to contribute if the 
company is wound up is $26,606 (2019: $25,626).      

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to 
which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those 
proceedings.      

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 

after Balance Date events      

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which significantly affected or may significantly affect the 
operations of the company, the results of the operation, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future financial 
years.            

auditor’s independence Declaration

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out at 
page 6. This report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:     
 

K.e. Jameson    s. Turner 
Director      Director

Dated this 10th day of august 2020   

 

DireCTOrs’ rePOrT (COnTinueD)
FOr The year enDeD 30 June 2020
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   note 2020 2019
    $ $
revenue 2 4,775,076 5,871,778

Cost of sales  (678,604) (856,110)  __________  __________

Gross operating surplus  4,096,472 5,015,668

       
 

Other income 2 366,857 100,112

Clubhouse expenses  (962,423) (1,013,437)

Rowing expenses  (723,672) (776,120)

Bar expenses  (1,142,919) (1,225,137)

Poker machine expenses  (674,419) (771,890)

Keno expenses  (3,344) (4,664)

Administration expenses   (722,179) (698,593)

Borrowing costs 3 (34,043) (33,938)

Other expenses  (40,684) (32,109)  __________  __________

surplus for the year attributable to members  159,647 559,892
       
 

Other comprehensive income for the year
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings  81,096  -     __________  __________

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to members  240,743 559,892  __________  __________    __________  __________

sTaTeMenT OF PrOFiT anD LOss anD 
COMPrehensive inCOMe
FOr The year enDeD 30 June 2020   

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements
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The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements

   note 2020 2019
    $ $
asseTs
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,397,012 1,148,160

Trade and other receivables 6 304,526 243,932

Inventories  47,944 66,665  __________  __________

Total current assets  1,749,482 1,458,757  __________  __________

       
non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 12,509,390 12,353,718

Intangibles   -    642

Work in progress  288,390 260,676  __________  __________

Total non-current assets  12,797,780 12,615,036  __________  __________

TOTaL asseTs  14,547,262 14,073,793  __________  __________   __________  __________
       
LiaBiLiTies
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 397,811 298,170

Provisions 10 289,164 256,625

Contract liabilities 9 232,059 253,270

Interest bearing liabilities 11 11,574 100,000  __________  __________

Total current liabilities  930,608 908,065  __________  __________

       
non-current liabilities    

Provisions 10 32,735 49,508

Interest bearing liabilities 11 226,956  -   __________  __________

Total non-current liabilities  259,691 49,508  __________  __________

TOTaL LiaBiLiTies   1,190,299 957,573  __________  __________   __________  __________
neT asseTs  13,356,963 13,116,220  __________  __________   __________  __________
       
eQuiTy   

Reserves 12 6,820,953 6,739,857

Retained earnings  6,536,010 6,376,363  __________  __________

TOTaL eQuiTy  13,356,963 13,116,220  __________  __________   __________  __________

sTaTeMenT OF FinanCiaL POsiTiOn
FOr The year enDeD 30 June 2020    



23

Sydney Rowing Club Limited
ABN 12 000 995 746

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements

    Asset  
 Note Retained Revaluation  
  Earnings Reserve Total 
  $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2019  6,376,363 6,739,857 13,116,220

Surplus for the year  159,647  -    159,647

Other comprehensive income for the year   -    81,096 81,096 ______________________________________________ 

Total comprehensive income for the year  159,647 81,096 240,743 ______________________________________________   ______________________________________________

Balance as at 30 June 2020  6,536,010 6,820,953 13,356,963 ______________________________________________   ______________________________________________

Balance at 1 July 2018  5,816,471 6,739,857 12,556,328

Surplus for the year  559,892  -    559,892

Other comprehensive income for the year   -     -     -  ______________________________________________   

Total comprehensive income for the year  559,892  -    559,892 ______________________________________________   ______________________________________________

Balance as at 30 June 2019  6,376,363 6,739,857 13,116,220 ______________________________________________   ______________________________________________

STATEmENT of ChANgES iN EquiTy
foR ThE yEAR ENdEd 30 JuNE 2020   

STATEmENT of CASh flowS
foR ThE yEAR ENdEd 30 JuNE 2020

   Note 2020 2019
    $ $
Cash flows from operating activities    

Receipts from customers  5,611,280 6,504,471

Payments to suppliers and employees  (4,829,825) (5,465,504)

Interest received 2 16,086 23,340

Interest paid  (814) (3,913)  __________  __________

Net cash from operating activities  796,728 1,058,394  __________  __________

    

Cash flows from investing activities    

Acquisition of plant and equipment and WIP  (501,608) (518,392)

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment  53,732 21,013  __________  __________

Net cash used in investing activities  (447,876) (497,379)  __________  __________

    

Cash flows from financing activities    

Repayment of financial liabilities  (100,000)  -     __________  __________

Net cash used in financing activities  (100,000)  -     __________  __________ 

Net increase in cash held  248,852 561,015

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  1,148,160 587,145  __________  __________

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 1,397,012 1,148,160  __________  __________    __________  __________
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nOTe 1 sTaTeMenT OF siGniFiCanT aCCOunTinG POLiCies

The financial statements are for Sydney Rowing Club Limited as an individual company (the company). Sydney Rowing Club 
Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The company is a not-for-profit company 
for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. The presentation currency is Australian dollars. 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have 
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.      

new or amended accounting standards and interpretations adopted
The company has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of these Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position of the company. 
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted.

The following Accounting Standard and Interpretation are most relevant to the company:   
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
The company has adopted AASB 15 from 1 July 2019. The standard provides a single comprehensive model for revenue 
recognition. The core principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods or services. The standard introduced a new contract-based revenue recognition model with a 
measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price. This is described further in the accounting 
policies below. Credit risk is presented separately as an expense rather than adjusted against revenue. Contracts with 
customers are presented in the company’s statement of financial position as a contract liability, a contract asset, or a 
receivable, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment. Customer 
acquisition costs and costs to fulfil a contract can, subject to certain criteria, be capitalised as an asset and amortised over 
the contract period. 
AASB 16 Leases 
The company has adopted AASB 16 from 1 July 2019. The standard replaces AASB 117 ‘Leases’ and for lessees eliminates 
the classifications of operating leases and finance leases. Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, 
right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position. Straight-line 
operating lease expense recognition is replaced with a depreciation charge for the right-of-use assets (included in operating 
costs) and an interest expense on the recognised lease liabilities (included in finance costs). In the earlier periods of the 
lease, the expenses associated with the lease under AASB 16 will be higher when compared to lease expenses under AASB 
117. However, EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) results improve as the operating 
expense is now replaced by interest expense and depreciation in profit or loss. For classification within the statement 
of cash flows, the interest portion is disclosed in operating activities and the principal portion of the lease payments are 
separately disclosed in financing activities. For lessor accounting, the standard does not substantially change how a lessor 
accounts for leases.         
Impact of adoption 
AASB 15 and AASB 16 were adopted using the modified retrospective approach and as such comparatives have not been 
restated. There was no impact to the company on the adoption of AASB 15. The impact on the adoption of AASB 16 at 
1 July 2019 was the recognition of a right-of-use-asset $245,147 and related lease liability $245,147 in connection with all 
former operating leases except for those identified as low-value or having a remaining lease term of less than 12 months 
from the date of the initial application.         

Coronavirus (COviD-19) and Going concern         
The Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic continues to impact both communities and businesses throughout the world 
including Australia and the community where the company operates. This pandemic will likely have a financial impact for the 
company in the 2021 financial year and beyond. 
The NSW Government implemented various measures to control the spread of COVID-19. This resulted in the club being 
placed into shutdown on the 23 March 2020. The Club reopened on 1 June 2020 under reduced control measures, affecting 
two thirds of its potential seating capacity. With very little revenue received during the shutdown period, the club stood 
down all casual employees, with permanent employees either moving to reduced hours or utilising leave entitlements. The 
club became eligible for, and received, Government support programs such as the Jobkeeper scheme, gaming tax deferrals, 
payroll tax reductions and PAYG cash boosts. Along with placing many contracted services on hold and obtaining rent relief 
on the club’s foreshore lease with RMS, the club was able to substantially control the financial losses during this period. After 
reopening on 1 June 2020, a large portion of casual employees resumed employment and revenues reached 70% of previously 
budgeted levels. Control measures were further reduced on 1 July 2020 resulting in two thirds of seating becoming available. 
With the assistance of the Jobkeeper program and likely increases in trading potential, all permanent staff resumed full-time 
duties. Management will continue to implement strategic measure accordingly in 2020-21 to protect key assets and not 
undermine our capacity to continue operating as a going concern. 

nOTes TO The FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs
FOr The year enDeD 30 June 2020
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Basis of preparation         
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) and the 
Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 
The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on 
historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets 
and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
The directors have the power to amend and revise the financial statements. The financial statements were authorised for issue 
on 10 August 2020 by the directors of the company.  

(a) income tax         

 No provision for income tax has been raised as the company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income 
Tax Assessment Act 1997.  

(b) Goods and services Tax (GsT)         

 Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

 Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial 
position. 

 Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities 
which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from 
customers or payments to suppliers.  

(c) Critical accounting estimates and judgements         

 The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management 
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgment or complexity are detailed below. The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated 
into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a 
reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and 
within the company. The resulting accounting judgments and estimates will seldom equal the actual results. 

 Valuation         

 The Company’s freehold land and building were independently valued at 1 May 2020 by Preston Rowe Paterson. The 
valuation was based on the fair value using the value per square metre of land and the current replacement cost of the 
buildings. The critical assumptions adopted in determining the valuation included the location of the land and buildings, 
the current strong demand for land and buildings in the area and recent sales data for similar properties. 

 Depreciation         

 The company determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its property, 
plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical 
innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less 
than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be 
written off or written down. 

 Employee benefits provision         

 The liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date are recognised 
and measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at the 
reporting date. In determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and pay increases through 
promotion and inflation have been taken into account. 

 Lease term 
The lease term is a significant component in the measurement of both the right-of-use asset and lease liability. Judgement 
is exercised in determining whether there is reasonable certainty that an option to extend the lease or purchase the 
underlying asset will be exercised, or an option to terminate the lease will not be exercised, when ascertaining the 
periods to be included in the lease term. In determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an 
economical incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option, are considered at the 
lease commencement date. Factors considered may include the importance of the asset to the company’s operations; 
comparison of terms and conditions to prevailing market rates; incurrence of significant penalties; existence of significant 

nOTes TO The FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs (COnTinueD)
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leasehold improvements; and the costs and disruption to replace the asset. The company reassesses whether it is 
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option, if there is a significant event or 
significant change in circumstances. 

 Incremental borrowing rate 
Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate is estimated to 
discount future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease liability at the lease commencement date. Such a 
rate is based on what the company estimates it would have to pay a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an 
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset, with similar terms, security and economic environment.   
       

    2020 2019
    $ $

nOTe 2 revenue anD OTher inCOMe

revenue
Revenue from club operations:
Bar sales  2,819,098 3,514,272

Poker machine revenue  1,012,606 1,350,007

Mercery sales  4,391 5,037

Keno commission  8,912 13,302

Catering fee and function income  590,336 666,012

Membership subscriptions  303,486 278,857

Fundraising income  36,247 44,291  __________  __________

Total revenue  4,775,076 5,871,778  __________  __________    __________  __________
     
Other income
Interest  16,086 23,340

Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment  47,855 21,013

Other - including government assistance provided under the Job Keeper scheme 302,916 55,759  __________  __________

Total other income  366,857 100,112  __________  __________    __________  __________

Accounting Policy
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company is expected to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the company: identifies the 
contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which 
takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the 
separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to 
be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the 
transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

Sale of goods 
Revenue from the sale of goods comprise of revenue earned from the provision of food, beverage and other goods and is 
recognised (net of rebates, returns, discounts and other allowances) at a point in time when the performance obligation is 
satisfied, that is on delivery of goods to the customer.

Poker machine revenue 
Revenue from poker machine gaming is recognised at a point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied, that is 
on the completion of a game by the customer.

Membership Subscriptions 
Membership subscriptions run from 1 July to 30 June. Only those membership subscriptions that are attributable to the 
current financial year are brought to account as income. Subscriptions relating to periods beyond the current financial 
year are shown in the statement of financial position as income in advance. Life time members one-off subscription is 
recognised in the year received.
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Donations and other revenue 
Donations and other revenue are recognised when they are received or when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest revenue 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which for floating rate financial rates is the rate 
inherent in the investment.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

    2020 2019
    $ $

nOTe 3 eXPenses

Other bank charges  26,000 30,025

Interest expense - right of use liability  7,229  -   

Interest paid – non related parties  814 3,913  __________  __________

Total borrowing cost  34,043 33,938  __________  __________
Superannuation – defined contributions  168,555 180,401  __________  __________

nOTe 4 auDiTOr’s reMuneraTiOn

Remuneration of the auditor for:

Auditing the financial statement  28,250 28,250

Other assurance services  4,500 4,500  __________  __________

Total auditor’s remuneration  32,750 32,750  __________  __________

nOTe 5 Cash anD Cash eQuivaLenTs

Cash at bank and on hand  317,658 175,892

Short term bank deposits  1,079,354 972,268  __________  __________

Total cash and cash equivalents  1,397,012 1,148,160  __________  __________

Accounting Policy
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, and bank deposits with original 
maturities of three months or less.         

nOTe 6 TraDe reCeivaBLes anD OTher asseTs

CurrenT  

Trade receivables  84,643 131,575

Prepayments  102,874 105,452

Other debtors  117,009 6,905  __________  __________

  304,526 243,932
Less: prepayments  (102,874) (105,452)  __________  __________

Financial asset (refer to note 15)  201,652 138,480  __________  __________    __________  __________
Accounting Policy
Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less any allowance for 
expected credit losses.

Allowance for expected credit losses
Current trade receivables are generally on 30-day terms. These receivables are assessed for recoverability and an allowance 
for expected credit losses is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is impaired. 
These amounts have been included in other expense items. Whilst $9,613 (2019: $8,229) is older than 90 days, there is no 
provision for expected credit losses as at 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).     
    

nOTes TO The FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs (COnTinueD)
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    2020 2019
    $ $

nOTe 7 PrOPerTy, PLanT anD eQuiPMenT

Land and Building – Core Property  

Land and building – at fair value  10,620,000 10,670,000

Building improvements   -    214,995  __________  __________

  10,620,000 10,884,995

Less: depreciation expense   -    (177,355)  __________  __________

  10,620,000 10,707,640  __________  __________

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment – at cost  4,832,655 4,579,617

Less: accumulated depreciation  (3,475,991) (3,200,776)  __________  __________

  1,356,664 1,378,841  __________  __________

Leased assets
Capitalised leased plant and equipment  701,032 719,761

Less: accumulated depreciation  (399,242) (452,524)  __________  __________

  301,790 267,237  __________  __________

    
right-of-use assets
Leased Waterfront Land - right-of-use  245,147  -   

Less: accumulated depreciation  (14,211)  -   __________  __________  

  230,936  -   __________    __________

Total property, plant and equipment  12,509,390 12,353,718   __________  __________    __________  __________
 Movements in carrying amounts
 Land and  Plant and Leased Plant 
 Buildings equipment & equipment Total
 $ $ $ $

Balance at the beginning of the year 10,707,640 1,378,841 267,237 12,353,718

Additions 8,721 397,219 69,320 475,260

Disposals  -    (144,184) (88,050) (232,234)

Gain on revaluation of land and buildings 81,096  -     -    81,096

Depreciation expense (177,457) (412,831) (34,685) (624,973)

Depreciation recovered on disposal  -    137,619 87,968 225,587  ___________________________________________________________

Balance at the end of the year 10,620,000 1,356,664 301,790 12,278,454  ___________________________________________________________    ___________________________________________________________
Accounting Policy
Property
Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value, based on periodic valuations by external independent valuers, 
less subsequent depreciation for buildings. It is the policy of the Company to have an independent valuation every three 
years, with an annual assessment being made by the directors.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same classes 
of assets shall be recognised in other comprehensive income under the heading revaluation surplus. All other decreases 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts 
included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings. 

nOTes TO The FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs (COnTinueD)
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Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and 
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed by the directors, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
each reporting date. An assets value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to 
the Company. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are 
included in the statement of comprehensive income.

Right-of-use assets
A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in 
the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, 
and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful 
life of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the 
end of the lease term, the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or 
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The company has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with 
terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to profit or loss as 
incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant and equipment (excluding land) over 
their expected useful lives as follows:    

Class of fixed asset Depreciation rate Depreciation method
Buildings 2% Straight line

Plant and equipment 5% - 40% Diminishing value and straight line

Valuation
The basis of the valuation of land and building is fair value. Land and buildings are independently revalued every three 
years. Values are based on an active market value or depreciated replacement value and are performed by a registered 
independent valuer. The valuation was performed on 1 May 2020 by Preston Rowe Paterson Pty Limited. The valuation of 
the land and building was for $10,620,000 split as $5,744,130 for land and $4,872,364 for the building.

The fair value increase has been recorded through the statement of comprehensive income. 

Fair value measurement
When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value, the fair value is based on the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principle market; or in the absence of a 
principal market, in the most advantageous market.    

AASB 13 requires fair value measurement to be recognised using the following fair value measurement hierarchy:  

•	 Level	1:	Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	

•	 Level	2:	Inputs	other	than	quote	prices	included	within	level	1	that	are	observable	for	the	asset	or	liability	either	
directly or indirectly  

•	 Level	3:	Unobservable	inputs	for	assets	and	liabilities		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

i) Recurring fair value measurements
 The fair value of the land and building has been determined using valuation techniques assuming that there is not an 

active market. Valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little 
as possible on company specific estimates. Where all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable 
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then it is included in level 2. If one of more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market date, the asset 
is included in level 3.         

 It has been determined that the land and building assets are determined using level 3 inputs. The quantitative 
information about the significant unobservable inputs used in the level 3 fair value measurements were:   
      

Description Fair value  unobservable rating on input  
 at 30 June 2020 inputs (probability   
   weighted average) 
Land	 $5,744,130	 Estimated	value	per	square	metres	 $245	to	$2,430	per	SQM

Building $4,872,364 Estimated current depreciated $10,439,000  

  replacement costs Construction cost Estimate 

Valuer assumes that business will return to normal trading levels post COVID – 19. ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Total $10,616,494    ___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ii)  Valuation process in a year when no external valuation is performed
 During the period between independent valuation reports, the directors review the carrying amount of the land and 

building, the market conditions, the current and future capital expenditure, together with the latest independent 
valuation to determine whether the value recorded is appropriate. Additionally, the directors assess whether there are 
any indications of impairment.     
    

    2020 2019
    $ $

nOTe 8 TraDe anD OTher PayaBLes

CurrenT  

Trade payables  242,510 106,839

GST clearing account  16,938 73,399

Accruals  62,775 75,483

PAYG withholding  28,205 38,433

Other creditors  47,383 4,016  __________  __________

  397,811 298,170  __________  __________
Accounting Policy
Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the company during the reporting 
period that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the 
amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability.     
   

   note 2020 2019
    $ $

nOTe 9 COnTraCT LiaBiLiTies

CurrenT  

Member subscriptions received in advance  232,059 253,270  __________  __________ 
Accounting Policy
Member subscriptions received in advance relate to subscriptions received from members as at 30 June 2020, for services 
that will be delivered in future financial years. These amounts are deferred to the period in which the income relates.

nOTes TO The FinanCiaL sTaTeMenTs (COnTinueD)
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    2020 2019

    $ $

nOTe 10 PrOvisiOns
CurrenT
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave  166,934 168,314

Provision for employee benefits: long service leave  122,230 88,311  __________  __________

  289,164 256,625  __________  __________
nOn CurrenT
Provision for employee benefits: long service leave  32,735 49,508  __________  __________

Total employee benefits  321,899 306,133  __________  __________    __________  __________
Accounting Policy
Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled.

Other long-term employee benefits
The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 
measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up 
to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market 
yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.     
    

nOTe 11 inTeresT BearinG LiaBiLiTies 

CurrenT  

Lease Liability  11,574  -   

Mortgage loan  -    100,000  __________  __________

  11,574 100,000  __________  __________    __________ 
nOn CurrenT
Lease Liability  226,956  - 

Mortgage loan   -     -     __________  __________

  226,956  -   __________  __________    __________  __________  
Accounting Policy
Lease Liability
A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present 
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease 
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of 
fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts 
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option 
is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend 
on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured 
if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual 
guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an 
adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset is fully written down.
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Mortgage Loan
Until	6	September	2019	the	company	had	a	mortgage	loan	agreement	with	a	bank.	The	mortgage	loan	had	a	limit	of	
$1,700,000. The loan was secured by all assets of the company.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Where there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, the 
loans or borrowings are classified as non-current.

 

   note 2020 2019
    $ $

nOTe 12 reserves

Opening balance  6,739,857 6,739,857

Asset revaluation – other comprehensive income  81,096  -    __________  __________ 

Closing balance  6,820,953 6,739,857  __________  __________
The asset revaluation reserve records the revaluation of non-current assets and this has been disclosed in changes of 
equity and recorded in other comprehensive income.     
    

nOTe 13 COMPany LiMiTeD By GuaranTee

Sydney Rowing Club Limited is a company limited by guarantee with the liability of members limited to the amount set out 
in the company’s constitution. The amount of the guarantee is limited to such amount as may be required not exceeding 
two dollars ($2). The guarantee is not capable of being called up except for the purpose of winding up of the company. 

nOTe 14 COnTinGenT LiaBiLiTies anD asseTs

There are no contingent liabilities or contingent assets to report at 30 June 2020 (2019: nil). 

nOTe 15 FinanCiaL risK ManaGeMenT

The company’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, leases, and 
bank loan.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 as detailed in the accounting 
policies to these financial statements, are as follows:    
 

Financial assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,397,012 1,148,160

Trade and other receivables 6 201,652 138,480  __________  __________

Total financial assets  1,598,664 1,286,640  __________  __________    __________  __________
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 397,811 298,170

Interest bearing liabilities 11 238,530 100,000  __________  __________

Total financial liabilities  636,341 398,170  __________  __________    __________  __________
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    2020 2019

    $ $

NOTE 16 OPERATING AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

a.  Leases as lessee  

 Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:     
 Payable
 Less than one year  -    18,462

 Between one and five years   -    73,847

 Greater than five years   -    244,617  __________  __________

   -    336,926  __________  __________    __________  __________
The operating lease in 2019 included a non-cancellable lease from NSW Maritime commenced on October 2011 with a 
25 year term and rent payable quarterly in advance. Rent reviews occur annually and are based on CPI. 
 
The introduction of AASB 16 ’Leases’ eliminates the classification of operating leases and finance leases. The resulting 
right of use asset and liability as a result of the adoption of AASB 16 are disclosed at Note 7 and Note 11 respectively.

b.    Capital commitments
There has been no capital expenditure contracted for at the reporting date but not recognised at the  
balance sheet date.      
    

NOTE 17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those 
available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

Transaction with related parties:

Director, Stephen Graham’s daughter, Lauren Graham, is an athlete who  
has been awarded a STAR Scholarship.  1,355 2,750

Director, Susanne Thiebe’s son, Max Brenner, is an athlete who has been  
awarded a STAR Scholarship.  717 750

Directors are members of the Sydney Rowing Club Limited and transactions between them and the company are on normal 
commercial terms, and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

No director of the company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the 
company or a related corporation with a director or with a firm of which they are members, or with a company in which 
they have a substantial financial interest.    

NOTE 18 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Total remuneration of key management personnel.  795,938 766,052  __________  __________    __________  __________

NOTE 19 AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which significantly affected or may significantly 
affect the operations of the company, the results of the operation, or the state of affairs of the company in future 
financial years.     
    

NOTE 20 COMPANY DETAILS

The registered office of the company is:

Sydney Rowing Club Limited

613 Great North Road

Abbotsford NSW 2046

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINuED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JuNE 2020
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DireCTOrs’ DeCLaraTiOn
In the directors’ opinion:

•	 the	attached	financial	statements	and	notes	comply	with	the	Corporations	Act	2001,	the	Australian	Accounting	Standards	
- Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements;       

•	 the	attached	financial	statements	and	notes	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	company’s	financial	position	as	at	30	June	2020	
and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

•	 there	are	reasonable	grounds	to	believe	that	the	company	will	be	able	to	pay	its	debts	as	and	when	they	become	due	and	
payable.       

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001.  
      

On behalf of the directors

K. e. JaMesOn    s. Turner 
Director      Director

 

Dated this 10th day of august 2020        
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inDePenDenT auDiTOr’s rePOrT TO The MeMBers 
OF syDney rOwinG CLuB LiMiTeD

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Sydney Rowing Club Limited (the Company), which comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Sydney Rowing Club Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 
2001, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its financial performance for the 
year then ended; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements report and the Corporations 
Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and 
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information contained in the 
Sydney Rowing Club Limited’s Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 but does not include the financial report and 
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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inDePenDenT auDiTOr’s rePOrT (COnTinueD)
responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduce Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Act 2001 and for 
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify	and	assess	the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	the	financial	report,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error,	design	and	
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

•	 Obtain	an	understanding	of	internal	control	relevant	to	the	audit	in	order	to	design	audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control.

•	 Evaluate	the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	the	reasonableness	of	accounting	estimates	and	related	
disclosures made by the directors.

•	 Conclude	on	the	appropriateness	of	the	directors’	use	of	the	going	concern	basis	of	accounting	and,	based	on	the	
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate	the	overall	presentation,	structure	and	content	of	the	financial	report,	including	the	disclosures,	and	whether	the	
financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during the audit.

CROWE SYDNEY BarBara riChMOnD 
    Partner   

10 august 2020  

sydney
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Disclaimer
The additional financial data presented below and in the following pages is in accordance with the books and records of 
Sydney Rowing Club Limited for the year ended 30 June 2020.

It will be appreciated that our audit did not cover all details of the additional financial data. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on such financial data and no warranty of accuracy or reliability is given. Neither the firm nor any member or 
employee of the firm undertakes responsibility in any way whatsoever to any person (other than our client) in respect of such 
data, including any errors or omissions therein however caused.       
 

CROWE SYDNEY

BarBara ricHmOND     
Partner   

 

Dated this 10th day of august 2020        
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   schedule 2020 2019
    $ $
Surplus on bar trading 1  1,000,564   1,438,324 

Net income from poker machines 2  338,187   578,117 

Catering and function income   590,336   666,012 

Interest received  6,606   8,897 

Net income from Keno  5,568   8,638 

Other income   354,673   76,509   __________  __________

     2,295,934   2,776,497 

Less:    

Administration expenses 3  724,677   698,593 

Club house and grounds expenses 4  962,423   1,013,437 

Dining room expenses 5  6,502   6,354 

Financial expenses 6  24,564   19,495 

Other expenses  516   907   __________  __________

     1,718,682   1,738,786   __________  __________

Surplus from club house operations  577,251   1,037,711   __________  __________    __________  __________

    

add:    

Members subscriptions  303,486   278,856   __________  __________

     303,486   278,856   __________  __________

    

Less:    

Net rowing expenses 7  723,672   757,370   __________  __________

    

add / (less):    

Net income / (expense)  from events & fundraising 8  2,581   694   __________  __________

      __________  __________

Operating surplus   159,646   559,892   __________  __________    __________  __________

sCheDuLe 1.  Bar Trading  

Sales   2,819,099   3,514,271 

Cost of sales   (675,616)  (850,810)  __________  __________

Gross surplus   2,143,483   2,663,461   __________  __________

expenses    

Bar wages and payroll costs  1,096,722   1,174,802 

Depreciation   3,897   3,771 

Glass and bar consumables   31,017   34,984 

Other   11,282   11,580   __________  __________

Total expenses   1,142,919   1,225,137  __________  __________ 

surplus on bar trading   1,000,564   1,438,324   __________  __________

sCheDuLes TO suPPOrT  
The sTaTeMenT OF PrOFiT anD LOss
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   schedule 2020 2019
    $ $

sCheDuLe 2. Poker Machine results  

Receipts  1,096,544   1,466,110 

Less: GST collected  (99,686)  (133,283)  __________  __________

     996,858   1,332,827 

OLGR rebate income   15,748   17,180   __________  __________

Total income   1,012,606   1,350,007 

expenses    

Depreciation   136,387   112,613 

Duty  71,383   130,224 

Monitoring  17,977   21,934 

Promotions   225,989   282,679 

Repairs and maintenance   11,842   17,690 

Sundries   19,607   17,404 

Wages   191,234   189,346   __________  __________

Total expenses   674,419   771,890   __________  __________

net income from poker machines   338,187   578,117   __________  __________

  

sCheDuLe 3. administration  

Accounting, computer and audit fees   76,908   75,751 

Depreciation   32,366   29,827 

Consulting and legal expenses   8,500   10,082 

Directors expenses   6,488   12,480 

Donations   4,304   4,650 

Printing, postage and stationery   38,671   29,517 

Repairs and maintenance   1,746   1,951 

Salaries, wages and payroll costs   508,828   476,420 

Sundries   27,878   38,134 

Telephone   12,875   12,572 

Vehicle costs   6,113   7,209   __________  __________

administration expenses   724,677   698,593   __________  __________

    

sCheDuLe 4.  Club house and Grounds expenses  
Advertising  3,314   3,302 
Cleaning   98,636   119,181 
Depreciation   342,290   324,771 
Electricity and gas   142,506   155,699 
Entertainment   83,039   90,736 
Insurance   54,642   51,405 
Leases   14,211   18,462 
Promotions   23,130   32,305 
Rates   34,126   37,351 

Repairs and maintenance   82,633   74,632 

sCheDuLes TO suPPOrT  
The sTaTeMenT OF PrOFiT anD LOss
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   schedule 2020 2019
    $ $

Security   82,718   103,260 

Sundries   1,178   2,333  __________  __________

Club house and grounds expenses   962,423   1,013,437   __________  __________

  

sCheDuLe 5. Dining room expenses  
Depreciation   6,502   6,354   __________  __________

Dining room expenses   6,502   6,354   __________  __________

sCheDuLe 6. Financial expenses  
Bank charges  16,521   15,582 

Interest paid   8,043   3,913   __________  __________

Financial expenses  24,564   19,495   __________  __________

  

sCheDuLe 7. rowing expenses  
NSWRA fees and levies  9,384   10,281 

Coaching expenses  473,985   532,596 

Depreciation   104,169   107,632 

Insurance   22,349   22,204 

Training and competition expenses   97,366   90,273 

Repairs and maintenance    

   Boat fleet  30,493   28,685 

   Boat house   37,075   33,460 

Sundries   10,897   10,924 

Other   5,347   7,591 

Rowing Australia elite club funding   (67,393)  (67,526)

RA Special Para Funding   -   (18,750)  __________  __________

net rowing expenses   723,672   757,370   __________  __________

  

sCheDuLe 8. net income from events and Fundraising  
Revenue   36,247   44,291 

Disbursements to athletes   (33,666)  (43,597)  __________  __________

net income / (loss) from events and fundraising   2,581   694   __________  __________

sCheDuLes TO suPPOrT  
The sTaTeMenT OF PrOFiT anD LOss
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Sydney Rowing Club – Winners of the Head of the Yarra 2019: Kendall Brodie, Harry Crouch, Oscar Carr-Middleton, Tom Galloway, 
Bryn Ellery, Alex Nichol, Jackson Kench, Torun Olsson, Nathan Bowden

Sydney Rowing Club – Winners of the Schoolgirl Eights Division 1 at the Head of the Yarra 2019: Luka Currell, Lily Gavan, Gemma 
Campbell, Laura Sypher, Ingrid Holtheuer, Grace Sypher, Lily Eales, Eliza Dunlop, Cox: Teresa Harris
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Sydney defeating SUBC by 0.4 of a second in the Champion Men’s Under 21 Coxed four of NSW 

Champion Men’s Under 21 Coxed four of NSW: Torun Olsson, Tom Galloway, Harry Crouch, Andy Hoffmann, Cox: Nick Dunlop
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Sydney Winning the Champion Women’s Under 21 Coxed four of NSW

Champion Women’s Under 21 Coxed four of NSW: India Thomson, Sophia Carmody, Lauren Graham, Isabelle Furrer,  
Cox: Hannah Cowap
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Our Coaches 2019-2020: Franz Imfeld, Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech, Brendan Longman

PR3 Sculler: Ben Gibson
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SYDNEY ROWING CLUB SOCIaL GOLf 
CLUB 
The social golf club continues to attract new members and we 
welcome enquires from members of the Sydney Rowing Club 
who would like to join the golf club. 

The Phyllis Gilmore Club Championship Trophy for 2019 was 
won by Steve Murray scoring 109 stableford points over the three 
championship rounds at Auburn, Boomerang and Blackheath 
Golf Clubs. The runner-up for 2019 was Neil Clarke with 107 
stableford points.

The Alf McBurney Trophy for 2019 was won by Neil Clarke with 
176 points with the runner-up Jim Riccord scoring 154 points. 
The Most Improved Golfer award went to Paul Blackwell, the 
Graham Thomas Encouragement Award went to Rod Nicholson 
and the Captain’s Birdie Trophy was won by Peter Carolan with 
three birdies. 

We held our Annual Presentation night at Carmel’s Restaurant, 
Wareemba in December which was well attended and everyone 
had a very enjoyable evening.

The winners of our point score games this year to-date are Peter 
Carolan, Paul Blackwell, Christine Allsopp and Rick Seymour. Our 
only social team event this year has been won by John Ostlund 
and Nathan Murray (Canadian Foursomes).

Our annual Billy Bolger Match Play Challenge event was again a 
great day at the Boomerang Golf Club on Sunday 1 March 2020. 
The Captain’s team won narrowly beating the Chairperson’s team 
four matches to three with one game halved.

The club have missed a couple of games due to the Covid 19 
restrictions which has also impacted our ability to hold our 
barbecues back at the SRC so our numbers have been down 
at some of the games. They picked up for our last game at 
Woodville when we came back for our barbecue the first in 3 
months.

We have also been unable to hold our Saturday raffles at the club 
which is our main fund raising activity at the moment we have 
been using our reserve funds to assist in paying for our prizes 
and supplementing our green fees, hopefully we maybe able to 
resume our raffles later in the year.  

Our club is ably supported by our Committee Members, 
Chairman Linda Watt-Smith, Secretary Peter Carolan, Treasurer 
Jim Riccord, Captain Norman Gilmore, Handicapper Mark 
Stephens, Social Secretary Tony Dyer and Assistant Social 
Secretary Rick Seymour, our thanks also to our regular chefs Neil 
Clarke, Paul Keating and Rick Seymour also the ladies who assist 
with the barbeques after our games.

We especially thank the Sydney Rowing Club for their ongoing 
support and sponsorship of our social golf club, our members 
particularly enjoy the after-game barbecues, drinks and prize 
presentations back at the Club after our games.

We would like to thank the members of Sydney Rowing Club for 
their continued generous support of our Saturday meat raffles 
and our other sponsors Ambassador Trophies, Basket Case 
Laundrette, Dedes Restaurant, Lock, Stock & Bottle Abbotsford 
and Mediation Remedies all of whom make the day even more 
enjoyable for the golfers.

Linda Watt-Smith 
Chairperson, Sydney Rowing Club Social Golf Club 

MaRKETING aND COMMUNICaTIONS
The Marketing and Communications Committee is responsible 
for the Rowing Club’s social media: Facebook (www.facebook.
com/SydneyRowing), Instagram (@sydrowingclub), Flickr 
photo sharing site (Sydney Rowing Club), website (www.
sydneyrowingclub.com.au/rowing) and e-newsletter The Catch. 

The committee this year has gone from strength to strength in 
growing SRC’s following across our social media platforms, in our 
efforts to ensure that the greater rowing community knows that 
Sydney Rowing Club is the best club in the world. Building on 
from the growth achieved last year, SRC’s social media followings 
increased by approximately 20%, distinguishing us as the club 
with the largest following in the Australian rowing community.

This growth is evidence that the club’s reputation – both at home 
and abroad – is as strong as it ever has been, with members 
of the global rowing community more aware than ever of our 
successes at Senior, Club, and Junior levels.

Our growth was particularly evident during last years 
international regatta season, where we experienced an 
unprecedented amount of traffic across all platforms. Not only 
was this fantastic to see from a social media standpoint, but the 
messages of support our athletes received from friends of SRC 
around the world, through our official pages, was truly brilliant 
to witness.

Our continued focus on our online presence has also brought 
new members to the club, with many athletes reaching out to 
our Facebook and Instagram pages in order to make enquiries 
about joining our various squads. Notably, a number of our 
international ‘gap year’ athletes, from the UK, were among 
this group, and eventually came to enjoy a fantastic season 
competing for SRC. 

A new component of the Marketing and Communications 
committee has been the creation of video content for SRC’s 
Instagram and Facebook pages. This content has been extremely 
effective at casting a new light upon the club’s activities and 
delivering this perspective to a wide audience.

A special thank you must go out to our coaches, for their 
immense assistance in gathering content, as well as providing 
general direction throughout the season. Further, the assistance 
of the entire committee has been invaluable in adding a varied 
perspective to our work.

It has been a privilege to give the club a voice this season, 
and witness first-hand the respect and admiration that we are 
afforded by the rowing community all around the world. I 
look forward to working with the committee, expanding our 
operations, and continuing in this role for the foreseeable future. 

Chris McCarthy
Co-ordinator
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Masters Men’s Eight at Riverview Regatta: Michael Wood, Ken Rikard-Bell, Stuart Cowap, David Greenslade, Roger Brighton, Robert 
McNeill, Charles Lloyd Jones, Peter Yates, Cox: Scott Trayhurn

Masters Women’s Eight at Iron Cove Classic Regatta: Tara Rennie, Helen Bremner, Kristen Greaves, Sue-Ella Day, Jo-Anne Armstrong, 
Kim Lloyd Jones, Julie-Anne Brighton, Kim Odolphi, Cox: Hannah Cowap
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MaSTERS REPORT
I write this in early July 2020 after a very bizarre and interrupted 
season as NSW cautiously emerges from Coronavirus restrictions 
and with an ever-present threat of those being reimposed. In 
the early months, we often had poor visibility due to bushfire 
smoke and sometimes had difficulty breathing out on the water, 
and then at the end, the season was truncated by the COVID-19 
lock-down when the Masters were yet to compete in their major 
competitions. Despite those challenges, the group had some 
notable successes in their shortened calendar.

Special recognition should go to a group of determined and 
perseverant Women Masters at the club who decided in July 
last year that they would like to compete in Melbourne at the 
Head of the Yarra. Most of the ladies were regular scullers, but 
few had any significant sweep-oar experience which made their 
effort even more impressive. Training twice per week (and often 
three times with an extra session in sculls), the ladies learnt fast 
and gradually built fitness until they were rowing on Sundays 
from Silverwater back to SRC in a single piece, the approximate 
distance of the Yarra race. On 17/11/19, they had a “full dress 
rehearsal” at Iron Cove Classic 3, earning a creditable 4th place 
(including rigging, transport and de-rigging, important facets 
of rowing “on tour”). Their outing on the big day (in glorious 
weather) was a credit to the whole crew and it was great to see 
a Women’s Masters crew for the first time enjoying a few bevvies 
in the Hawthorn boat park with the rest of the SRC flotilla. 
The crew were Sue-Ella Day, Jo Armstong, Helen Bremner, Kim 
Sasi, Kristen Greaves, Julie-Anne Brighton, Tara Rennie, Str. 
Kim Odolphi, Cox Crystal Piper and Coach Roger Brighton. 
No Masters group can train and compete without reserves and 
special thanks go to “regulars” Jo Lilley, Robyn Raymond and Jen 
Greenslade with guest appearances by Gina De George and Deb 
Church. The Ladies also competed in various combinations at 
the SRC Regatta in February.

The Men’s Masters group also travelled to Melbourne again 
and defended their D-age group title with a convincing victory 
over Yarra Yarra and the well-credentialled Toowong (with 
Mosman in 4th). The crew this year comprised Stuart Cowap, 
Roger Brighton, Dave Greenslade, Carl Quitzau, Steve Graham, 
Simon Nola and Mike Davies with the Australian National Cox, 
SRC’s own Kendall Brodie, pulling the strings and driving us 
forwards (before she made a rapid exit and dash back to the start 
for the other Elite Men’s crew). Asked by the MC at the Medal 
presentation what it was that made SRC successful, our 3-man 
(DG) paraphrased the Olympic motto in a response certain 
to set back Melbourne-Sydney relations a few years: “Harder, 
Faster…Better!” 

Various combinations competed at SRC Regatta including the 
Yarra crew and stalwarts Ken Rikard-Bell, Mike Wood and Charles 
Lloyd Jones, but only one win was scored in the MM4x. Both the 
4- and 8+ just couldn’t track down “I” and “J” crews respectively 
who enjoyed starts of 40s plus. At the Riverview Gold Cup, SRC 
again won their division by an emphatic 14s with an E-combo. 
of Mike Wood, Peter Yates, Ken Rikard-Bell, Charles Lloyd Jones, 
Dave Greenslade, Roger Brighton, Stuart Cowap and regular cox, 
Scott Trayhurn.

We were just gearing up for National and State Regattas when 
the virus put a stop to all rowing activities until just two weeks 
ago. Nevertheless, a good time was had by all, some success 
was enjoyed and new benchmarks set.  Thanks again to Men’s 
Super-Coach Steve Handley, and I must say it was an absolute 
pleasure guiding the women’s group, along with Charles Lloyd 
Jones, in their 2019 Sweep Assault.

Roger Brighton

ORDER Of MERIT
This award is made from time to 
time to recognise the efforts of 
members who have given 
exceptional service to the club 
over a long period of time. The 
winners of this award are 
presented with the Club’s light 
blue Honour Blazer. 

Scott Turner stroked 
Newington’s eight in 1978 and 
after leaving school rowed in 
Sydney Rowing Club’s youth 
eight for two seasons, with 
considerable success. After 
1980 he retired from rowing 
due to work and university 
commitments.

We saw Scott back at the club as 
a masters rower in 2003 when he was persuaded to come back to 
rowing by his friend Angus Playfair with whom he had rowed in 
the youth eight.

Scott remembers his first row back after an absence of more 
than 20 years, rowing with Angus Playfair, John Croll and Tony 
Brown (junior): “I couldn’t walk for a week”. Despite this, Scott 
continued as a masters rower until 2014.

An accountant, Scott joined the Board of the club as Director of 
Finance in 2007 and has held the position ever since. 

As Director of Finance, Scott has made a valuable contribution 
to the club, applying his calm and considered judgement to the 
many issues that face the Board in running what has become a 
large and complex organisation.

We congratulate Scott and thank him for his efforts. We trust that 
his enthusiasm will remain undiminished and we look forward to 
his continuing involvement with the club.
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WINNING CREWS 
Regatta Season 2019-2020

NEPEaN HEaD NO 1 – 25 aUGUST 2019
Women’s Under 19 Double Scull Elizabeth Carter, Sarah Abrams, Coach: Brendan Longman
Men’s Under 19 Single Scull Namkhai Stylianou, Coach: Brendan Longman
Women’s Under 19 Single Scull Lily Gavan, Coach: Brendan Longman

NEWCaSTLE UNI PRE IV REGaTTa – 21 SEPTEMBER 2019
Women’s U15/16 Single Scull Talisa Knoke-Driver, Coach: Brendan Longman

NEPEaN HEaD NO 2 – 5 OCTOBER 2019
Men’s Under 19 Single Scull Henry Furrer, Coach: Brendan Longman
Women’s Under 19 Single Scull Caitlin McManus-Barrett, Coach: Brendan Longman

RNSW SPRING REGaTTa – 19 OCTOBER 2019
Women’s D Grade Single Scull Talisa Knoke-Driver, Coach: Brendan Longman
Women’s D Grade Double Scull Talisa Knoke-Driver, Charlotte Risbey, Coach: Brendan Longman
Men’s Novice Single Scull Henry Furrer, Coach: Brendan Longman

HEaD Of THE YaRRa – 30 NOVEMBER 2019
Men’s Open Eight Harry Crouch, Torun Olsson, Bryn Ellery, Thomas Galloway, Nathan Bowden,  
 Oscar Carr-Middleton, Jackson Kench, Alex Nichol, Cox: Kendall Brodie, Coach: Franz Imfeld
Schoolgirl Eight Div 1 Luka Currell, Lily Gavan, Gemma Campbell, Laura Sypher, Ingrid Holtheuer, Grace Sypher,  
 Lily Eales, Eliza Dunlop, cox: Teresa Harris, Coaches Brendan Longman, Lachlan Carter
Men’s Masters D Eight Stuart Cowap, Roger Brighton, Simon Nola, Carl Quitzau, David Greenslade, Stephen Graham,   
 Robert McNeill, Michael Davies, Cox: Kendall Brodie

RNSW REINDEER REGaTTa – 7 DECEMBER 2019
Women’s Under 21 Double Scull India Thomson, Grace Sypher, Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Brendan Longman
Men’s Under 23 Coxless Pair Harry Crouch, Oscar Carr-Middleton, Coach: Franz Imfeld
Women’s Under 23 Double Scull Lauren Lyon, Romola Davenport, Coach: Lachlan Carter
Women’s Under 19 Single Scull Grace Sypher, Coach: Lachlan Carter
Women’s Under 21 Single Scull India Thomson, Coach: Lachlan Carter
Men’s Open Coxless Four Jackson Kench, Harry Crouch, Alex Nichol, Oscar Carr-Middleton, Coach: Franz Imfeld

TaREE SUMMER REGaTTa 10 TO 12 JaNUaRY 2020
Men’s Masters Coxless Four Ken Ambler [SRC], Phillip Titterton [MOSM], John James [NSHR], Graham Wearne [DRC]
Men’s Masters Quad Scull Phillip Titterton [MOSM], Ken Ambler [SRC], Timothy Rogers [ARMID], John Sheldrick [DRC]

RNSW SMaLL BOaTS REGaTTa – 25 JaNUaRY 2020
Men’s PR1 Para Single Scull  Erik Horrie, Coach: Jason Baker
Men’s PR3 Para Single Scull  Ben Gibson, Coaches:  Franz Imfeld, Donovan Cech
Women’s Under 19 Double Scull Lily Gavan, Grace Sypher, Coach: Brendan Longman
Women’s Under 21 Pair Lauren Graham, Isabelle Furrer, Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech
Women’s Under 23 Pair Lauren Graham, Isabelle Furrer, Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech
Para Coxless Pair Ben Gibson [SRC], James Talbot [SUBC]
Women’s Under 19 Single Scull Grace Sypher, Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech
Men’s Under 21 Double Scull Lachlan Wilmot, Miles Devereux, Coaches: Franz Imfeld, Donovan Cech
Men’s Under 23 Double Scull Torun Olsson, Alex Nichol, Coaches: Franz Imfeld, Donovan Cech
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NSW ROWING CHaMPIONSHIPS - 7 TO 9 fEBRUaRY 2020
Men’s PR3 Single Scull Ben Gibson, Coaches: Franz Imfeld, Donovan Cech
Women’s Under 21 Single Scull India Thomson, Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech
Women’s Under 21 Eight Grace Sypher, Evie Thomson, Ingrid Holtheuer, Niamh Graham, Sophia Carmody,  
 India Thomson, Lauren Graham, Isabelle Furrer, Cox: Hannah Cowap, Coaches: Lachlan Carter,  
 Donovan Cech, Brendan Longman
Men’s Elite Double Scull Hamish Playfair [UTS], David Watts [SRC]
Men’s Elite Coxless Four Alex Purnell [SUBC], Spencer Turrin [SRC], Jack Hargreaves [SUBC], Alexander Hill [ADEL]

SYDNEY ROWING CLUB REGaTTa – 22 fEBRUaRY 2020

Men’s Under 19 Single Scull Henry Furrer, Coaches: Brendan Longman, Donovan Cech
Men’s Under 19 Single Scull Michael Campbell, Coaches: Brendan Longman, Donovan Cech
Men’s Under 21 Single Scull Harry Crouch, Coaches: Franz Imfeld, Donovan Cech
Women’s Under 21 Single Scull Sophia Carmody, Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech
Ch Men’s Under 21 Coxed Four Andy Hoffmann, Harry Crouch, Thomas Galloway, Torun Olsson, Cox: Nicholas Dunlop,   
 Coaches: Franz Imfeld, Donovan Cech
Ch Women’s U21 Coxed Four India Thomson, Sophia Carmody, Lauren Graham, Isabelle Furrer, Cox: Hannah Cowap,   
 Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Donovan Cech
Men’s Masters Quad Scull Ken Rikard-Bell, Martin Little, David Greenslade, Roger Brighton
Women’s Under 17 Single Scull Elizabeth Holtheuer, Coach: Brendan Longman
Women’s Open Eight Danielle Stuart [SUBC], India Thomson [SRC], Sophia Carmody [SRC], Olivia O’Donnell [SUBC],  
 Ella Mentzines [SUBC], Laura Gourley [UTS], Lauren Graham [SRC], Isabelle Furrer [SRC],  
 Cox: Hannah Cowap [SRC], Coaches: Lachlan Carter, Jack Hanley
Men’s Under 21 Quad Scull Lachlan Wilmot, Andy Hoffmann, Henry Furrer, Miles Devereux, Coaches: Franz Imfeld,  
 Brendan Longman, Donovan Cech
Men’s Masters Eight John James [NSHR], John Simson [CANB], John May [MOSM], Nick Dorsch [LEICH],  
 Graham Wearne [DRC], Phillip Titterton [MOSM], Ken Ambler [SRC], John Sheldrick [DRC],   
 Cox: Jacqueline Marks [LEICH], Coach: Howard Goodall

RIVERVIEW GOLD CUP – 29 fEBRUaRY 2020
Men’s Masters Eight Michael Wood, Peter Yates, Ken Rikard-Bell, Charles Lloyd Jones, Stuart Cowap, Roger Brighton,  
 David Greenslade, Robert McNeill, Cox: Scott Trayhurn
After the Riverview Gold Cup Regatta all major regattas were cancelled.

Under 23 Sculler: Jackson Kench
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ROWERS REUNIONS
Our November event was a great day with many members 
attending, the weather was kind and the formalities commenced 
with the 50 Year pot presentations to Tony Brown, Gordon and 
Ian Clubb, Ed Moore and Steve Yorke.

We were fortunate to have Kendall Brodie attend the event and 
she gave an update on the performance this year of the Sydney 
Rowing Club members currently training for the Tokyo Olympics.

The day was a celebration of two great wins for the Club and a 
consequent reunion of the crews. 

Three members of the Wyfold Cup winning crew from the Royal 
Henley Regatta 2009, and their coach Gary Robertson, were in 
attendance. Gary gave a good account of the club’s performance 
at the HRR and in particular his crew’s great win.

Many members of the two Sydney crews that won the 
Championship Eights of NSW with a dead-heat in 1979 were 
at the reunion. Michael Morgan, Tony Brown and Islay Lee all 
voiced their thoughts as to which crew won on the day and 
how from lanes 1 and 6. We had two Skype visits from overseas 
members of the two winning eights as well, Tim Crooks from the 

UK and Peter Rahn from Switzerland, who was as diplomatic as 
only the Swiss can be.

After the luncheon there was much discussion on the validity of 
the rightful winner of the 8’s race which carried on up into the 
clubhouse.

Our Photographic team captured many reunion crews, the 1979 
Wyfold Cup winners, the 1978 Australian Quad Scull, the 1979 
NSWRA Champion Men’s Eight joint winners, those remaining 
members who could attend the day, with one apology- Stuart 
Carter.

We also captured our Reunion Chairman, resplendent in his 
long-awaited Honour Blazer.

The camaraderie of the day was very special and these events are 
always must-attend days and never to be missed. Many former 
club members attend the day with people arriving from overseas 
and interstate.

We were hoping the May event would be a special day as the club 
moves into the 150th year to celebrate, however the Coronovirus 
put paid to all such events nationwide and even internationally.

Nick Gibson

Champion Men’s Quad of australia 1978: John Sivewright, Neil Clubb, Ted Hale, Jim Stride

Members of the two Sydney Rowing Club crews which won the Champion Men’s Eight of NSW in 1979 in a dead-heat:  
Michael Morgan (Coach),  Ted Hale, Neil Club, Jim Stride, Robert Paver, John Sivewright, Tony Curtin, Garry Uebergang, Tony Brown, 
Ian Clubb, Islay Lee, Stephen Handley, Gordon Clubb.
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Single Sculls:
Unnamed Sykes 2017 Very good
Gavin Parcsi Sykes 2013 Very good
Tim Hughes Sykes 2014 Very good
Susanne Thiebe Sykes 2013 Very Good
Lachlan Carter Sykes 2017 Excellent
Scott Woodward Sykes 2017 Excellent
Erik Horrie Filippi  2015 Very good 
Sgt Fred Wellisch Sykes 2014 Good
Lt Alf Jackson. Sykes 2014 Good
Capt Keith Heritage Sykes 2015 Excellent
Lt Claude Luscombe Sykes 2015 Excellent
Tess Gerrand Sykes 2013 Very good
Ray Armstrong Sykes 2013 Good
Peter Baird Sykes 2013 Good
Kirsten Liljeqvist Sykes 2013 Good
Hugh McLeod Sykes 2013 Good
Carl Quitzau Sykes 2013 Good
Martin Ward  Sykes 2013 Good
Charles Lloyd Jones Sykes 2011 Good
Ken Ambler Sykes 2011 Good
Paul Coates Sykes 2009 Good
Jim Goulding Sykes 2009 Good
Simon Nola Sykes 2009 Good
Angus Playfair Sykes 2009 Good
Jim Stride Sykes 2009 Good
A.J. Brown Sykes 2009 Good
Andrew Rowley Sykes 2009 Good
Glenn Ryder Sykes 2009 Good
Reg Stride Ausrowtec 2003 Fair

Wavecutters (2) Race1 2016 Good

Motor Boats:
1 Quintrex 370 Cartopper Excellent 
2 Stacer Proline 370 Good
3 Quintrex 370 Cartopper Excellent 
4 Stacer Proline 370 Poor
5 Sea Jay 385  Good
6 Quintrex 370 Cartopper Excellent
7 Stacer Proline 370 Excellent
8 Stacer Proline 370 Good

Motors: 
15hp 4 stroke  Yamaha Excellent
15hp 4 stroke  Yamaha Excellent
9.9hp  4 stroke short shaft Yamaha Excellent
9.9hp  4 stroke short shaft Yamaha Excellent
9.9hp 4 stroke  Yamaha Good
20hp   4 stroke  Yamaha Good
20hp  4 stroke  Yamaha Excellent
9.9hp 4 stroke short shaft Yamaha New 

Sweep Oars:
Concept 2 Skinny (3 sets of 8) plus 2 spares
Concept Low Inertia x 8
Croker Arrows x 10
Croker M4 (2 sets of 8)

Sculling Oars:
Croker Arrows x 15 pairs
Croker S2 superlight x 20 pairs
Croker S4 soft x 8 pairs

Lachlan Carter has responsibility for arranging maintenance and 
upkeep of the fleet and equipment.

EQUIPMENT REPORT

Boats purchased:
Sykes Single Scull (Second Hand) Unnamed
Empacher Pair (Heavyweight) Ed White
Empacher Pair (Lightweight) Nathan Bowden
Quintrex 370 Cartopper motor boat
Yamaha 9.9hp 4 stroke short shaft motor 

The club disposed of the following boats:
Empacher Double  Melva Cayzer
Ausrowtec Eight  George Parlby
Sea Jay 385 motor boat

Club fleet

Eights:
Q L Deloitte Empacher 2018 Excellent  
Keith Jameson Empacher 2018 Excellent
Ernie Chapman Empacher  2013 Very good
John Coates Empacher  2011 Very good
Phillip Cayzer Empacher  2008 Good
Q L Deloitte Sykes 2007 Good

Coxless fours/Quad Sculls:
Major Syd Middleton Empacher 2015 Excellent
Jim Stride Empacher 2011 Very good
Michael Morgan Empacher 2016 Excellent
Roger Brighton Sykes 2008 Good
Jim Goulding Sykes 2013 Excellent
Dallas Smith Empacher 2013 Excellent
Mick Allan Empacher 2013 Excellent
Tony Brown Sykes 2010 Good
Dedes Family KIRS 2005 Good
Sydney Sykes 2008  Good
Larry Parker Sykes 2002  Good

Coxed four/Quad:
Dame Eadith Walker Sykes 2015 Very good
Dale Caterson Sykes 2011 Good

Coxless Pairs/Double Sculls:
Ed White Empacher 2019 New
Nathan Bowden Empacher 2019 New
Josh Hicks Empacher 2017 Very good
Kendall Brodie Empacher 2011 Very good
Leah Saunders Empacher 2013 Very good
Chris Morgan Sykes 2016 Very good
Ian Clubb Sykes 2015 Very good
Alex Lloyd Empacher 2015 Very good
Spencer Turrin Empacher 2015 Very good
Russell Cooper Sykes 2012 Very good
Peter Grosvenor Sykes 2012 Good
Dominic Grimm Sykes 2011 Very good
James Chapman Sykes 2011 Very good
Ian Paver Sykes 2010 Good
Scott Turner Sykes 2010 Good
David Sollom Sykes 2008 Good
Stephen Handley Sykes 2007 Good
Michael Rowan Sykes 2007 Good 
Jenny Cole Sykes 2007 Good
Diane Johnson Sykes 2007 Good
Doug Donoghue Sykes 2006 Good
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DOUG DONOGHUE aM
Doug Donoghue was appointed a Life Member of Rowing 
Australia in May this year. Doug is a former Vice-President of 
Sydney Rowing Club and is currently Chairman of the Sydney 
Rowing Club Foundation. Doug has had a life-long association 
with rowing, starting as a coxswain, rower and coach at Sydney 
High, and a coach at SRC, and has held numerous Board and 
committee roles at the club, including, for many years, Chairman 
of the Finance Committee. He was awarded the club’s Honour 
Blazer in 1982.

In the broader rowing community Doug is best known for his 
role with the Australian Olympic Committee where he was for 
20 years a member of the Executive Board and played a key 
role in managing the finances of the AOC. He was awarded Life 
Membership of the Australian Olympic Committee in 2013.

Doug was also closely involved with Rowing NSW where he was 
a Vice-President and is a trustee of the Laurie Stepto Foundation. 
He was for some years a member of the Board of Rowing 
Australia.

Doug became very well known as a television and radio 
commentator for rowing. He worked on the commentaries for 
three Olympic regattas, and at the National Regatta, and for a 
long time was the commentator at the GPS Head of the River 
Regatta.

Congratulations Doug on becoming a Life Member of Rowing 
Australia and we look forward to your continued involvement 
with rowing and with Sydney Rowing Club.

SYDNEY ROWING CLUB fOUNDaTION
The Foundation is now in its eleventh year, a year that in the 
second half was subject to COVID-19 issues as was the Club, 
Australia and the world’s economies. 

The Trustees of the Foundation are Doug Donoghue AM 
(Chairman), Ian Clubb, Keith Jameson OAM, Michael Morgan 
OAM, and Andrew Rowley. Peter Grosvenor, the General Manager 
of the Club, is Secretary of the Foundation. 

On its formation, the Trustees resolved to ultimately apply 
Foundation funds to:

•	 Assist	in	upgrading	or	replacement	of	rowing	facilities

•	 Support	to	training,	coaching	and	other	Club	programmes

•	 Assisting	in	the	funding	of	boats	and	equipment

•	 Financial	assistance	to	the	Club’s	rowers

It was accepted that the Trust would grow over time through 
donations and bequests, and that we needed to reach a core 
amount.

The Trustees encourage members and supporters of Sydney 
Rowing Club to make donations and consider bequests where 
possible for the future benefit of the club.

In December 2019, the Foundation made investments totalling 
$99,426 in two listed investment companies, namely BKI 
Investment Company Limited and Whitefield Limited. At 30 June 
2020, the value of the investment was $84,366 despite overall 
share market volatility in the final quarter. 

At 30 June 2020 contributions to the Foundation from donations 
and bequests totalled $187,743. The value of Trust investments, a 
term deposit and other funds totalled $190,564, at 30 June 2020. 

COVID-19 also pre-empted our thoughts for a function in the 
June quarter. 

The Foundation has an agreement with the Australian Sports 
Foundation to enable members and supporters to make 
tax-deductible donations to the Sydney Rowing Club Foundation.

We ask members to consider making a donation or perhaps 
provide for a bequest to the Foundation.

Please don’t hesitate to contact any of the Trustees, or Peter 
Grosvenor, General Manager of the Club, if you would like 
further information.

Doug Donoghue aM
Chairman of Trustees

EVENTS aND fUNDRaISING
With the reduction in activity due to the pandemic, the club had 
no ability to run any fundraising functions, nor an immediate 
need to raise money for overseas team travel.

It was a pity to miss out on these popular social activities and we 
hope they will be back in the new season.

We were, however, recently able to resume support for our 
athletes by means of the weekly seafood raffles in the club 
house. Every week some of our active members can be seen 
in the club house selling raffle tickets for a fresh seafood tray. 
The funds raised from the raffle go towards regatta, training 
and travel expenses of the athletes. By purchasing tickets, 
club patrons are helping our athletes to offset their costs of 
competing for the club. We thank our members and guests for 
their generous support. 

SYDNEY ROWING CLUB’S 
SESQUICENTENaRY CELEBRaTIONS
We noted in last year’s report that the club planned a number of 
activities to mark the 150th anniversary of the founding of the 
club.

A meeting to form the club was held on Monday 7th March 
1870, and the official opening of the club took place on 27th 
August 1870 when there was a “Grand Boat Procession and 
Demonstration” attended by the Governor of NSW in his steam 
yacht. The club’s first dinner was held on the evening of the 
opening ceremony. The club’s first regatta took place on 17th 
September 1870.

With these dates in mind, we planned to celebrate the 
Sesquicentenary with a number of activities. 

•	 A	150th	Anniversary	Regatta	on	the	Saturday	closest	to	the	
anniversary of the first regatta. This was to be Saturday 19th 
September 2020, with the regatta to be run on a course 
finishing off the club’s grounds with racing visible from the 
club house.

•	 A	Sesquicentenary	Dinner	to	be	held	on	exact	150th	
anniversary of the official opening of the club. This dinner 
was to take place in the club house on Thursday 27th August 
2020, replacing the usual Annual Dinner for 2020.

Due to the pandemic, we had to defer these celebrations.

Proposed new dates, if public health orders permit, are:

•	 For	the	150th	Anniversary	Regatta,	a	year	late,	Saturday	18th	
September 2021

•	 For	the	Sesquicentenary	Dinner,	Tuesday	16th	March	2021

We have also placed on hold our plan to produce a new edition 
of the book Sydney Rows – A Centennial History of Sydney 
Rowing Club, which was to have been enhanced and upgraded 
by the addition of five new chapters for the decades from 1970 to 
2020. This is under review at the present moment.

•	 We	hope	to	place	a	commemorative	plaque	in	Circular	Quay	
close to the original site of the club.

•	 There	will	be	other	activities	and	merchandising	still	to	be	
determined.

We will keep members informed of progress.
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OBITUaRIES
We regret to record the deaths of the following members since 
our last report: 

Anthony Angelis, Val Coates, Carolyn Deabel, Margaret Dix, John 
Filbee, George Gear, Leslee Greenwood, Peter Gwalter, Janette 
Hartley, Jeanette Harvison, Janice Hatton, Maureen Hess, Stanley 
Hunt, Joseph Mesiti, Albert Metledge, John Norton-Russell, Joyce 
Overton, Helmut Pfeil, Bob Stone, Lynette Usher, Garry White, 
Colleen Williams, and Rita Williamson.

The club extends our deepest sympathy to their relatives and 
friends.

Val Coates was the proud mother of John, lived locally and was a 
strong supporter of the club.

Peter Gwalter was one of our highly successful group of 
lightweight rowers in the early 1960s, coached by Neil McCallum, 
Bill Andrews and Norm Grounds. He joined the club in 1959 
and for the next five years rowed in many winning lightweight 
fours and lightweight eights. Peter rowed in the club’s 
lightweight eight in the first ever National Regatta in 1962, at 
Lake Wendouree, finishing second behind Mercantile. In the 
1963-1964 season Peter rowed in the winning Sydney crews 
in the Champion Lightweight Four of NSW and the Champion 
Lightweight Eight of NSW and represented NSW in the Penrith 
Cup held on the Nepean River, won by Victoria with NSW in 
second place. Peter became a life member of the club and kept in 
touch with regular attendance at the club’s rowing reunions.

Bob Stone was another successful lightweight from the 1960s. 
He joined the club in January 1965 having already had a highly 
successful career rowing for Leichhardt. Bob joined Leichhardt in 
the 1950s in Professor Cotton’s time and although a lightweight, 
due to his good ergometer performances gained selection in 
Leichhardt’s senior eight, winning the Champion Eights three 
times and many Champion Lightweight Eights. 

Bob won his first race for SRC in March 1965 in the Lightweight 
Senior Pair. Next year he rowed in the Champion Lightweight 
Eight of NSW, and the same crew won the Australian 
Championship. Then Bob, at the age of 35, hung up his rowing 
shorts and took up coaching. In 1967-68, Bob’s crews won all 
the lightweight races including the Champion Lightweight Eight 
and Champion Lightweight Four, Champion Lightweight Coxed 
Four, and Champion Lightweight Pair, and the Penrith Cup. This 
success was repeated in 1968-69 with Bob’s crews winning the 
Champion Lightweight Coxed Four, the Champion Lightweight 
Eight and Champion Lightweight Four, and with an all-Sydney 
crew, the Penrith Cup of 1969.

In 1973-74 Bob handed over the coach’s megaphone to his 
star pupil Ian Carmody and with the pressures of his young 
family and a busy job as a policeman, took the opportunity to 
restore his life/work/rowing balance for a while. Some years 
later he took up the challenge of coaching again, returning to 
Leichhardt where he soon became very busy both as a coach and 
administrator. He served as President of Leichhardt from 1985 to 
2002, a period of 17 years.

Garry White was a prominent and well-known member, a regular 
in the club house and a keen supporter of the club’s activities.

HONORaRY  
LIfE MEMBERS
1928 H. R. Pearce*

1937 W. J. Dixon*

1954 W. F. Bradley*

1959 J. A. Goulding*

1959 W. A. Goulding*

1959 W. H. Holden*

1959 G. E. Parlby OAM*

1967 N. T. Grounds*

1968 M. T. Wood MBE*

1969 A. W. Duval (Jnr)

1970 H. Clare*

1971 A. L. May*

1972 A. R. Callaway*

1972 A. G. Grover*

1972 M. D. Morgan OAM

1972 G. M. Pearce

1973 G. Carlson*

1974 E. W. Chapman OAM*

1974 O. N. Rosevear ED*

1977 R. D. Paver

1979 K. L. Graham OAM*

1980 I. R. Lee

1981 I. A. Clubb

1983 P. A. Cayzer OAM*

1983 J. D. Coates AC

1985 J. P. Stride

1987 D. Caterson OAM

1989 R. P. Stride*

2001 K. E. Jameson OAM

2003 K. Larsen

2003 R. Walker

2003 R. Wearne

2003 J. Winter

2003 R. Jahrling

2008 S. Handley

2012 D. Smith*

2014 J. Chapman

2014 T. Gerrand

2017 A. Lloyd

2017 C. Morgan

2017 S. Turrin

2018 E. Horrie

* Denotes deceased

ORDER Of MERIT WINNERS
In recognition of their service to the Club, the Order of Merit has 
been conferred upon the following members:

1936 F. McK. Leister*

1937 W. A. Goulding*

1938 T. P. Mullholland*

1939 N. W. Lawrance*

1940 A. C. Lambert*

1947 E. Sawkins*

1955 G. E. Parlby OAM*

1956 W. H. Holden*

1957 J. A. Goulding*

1959 E. W. Chapman OAM*

1960 J. Creaser*

1961 C. K. Stewart*

1963 F. T. D. Meares*

1964 O. N. Rosevear*

1966 H. Clare*

1970 P. A. Cayzer OAM*

1972 E. A. Perry*

1975 K. L. Graham OAM*

1980 R. P. Stride*

1982 J. D. Donoghue AM

1983 D. J. Sollom

1986 K. E. Jameson OAM

1991 G. R. Ryder

1993 D. W. Smith*

1995 J. A. Goulding*

1997 I. A. Clubb

1998 J. D. Coates AC

2001 G. K. Allan

2003 M. Daffy

2005 L. Parker

2007 S. Derwin

2007 M. Morgan OAM

2010 S. Handley

2012 A. J. Brown

2015 D. Caterson OAM

2015 J. Cole

2015 J. Stride

2016 M. Rowan

2018 A. Rowley

2020 S. Turner

* Denotes deceased
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Women’s Under 23 Pair at the NSW Championships: Issy Furrer and Lauren Graham

Men’s Under 23 Pair at the NSW Championships: Alex Potter and Alex Nichol
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SYDNEY ROWING CLUB LIMITED

613 Great North Road Abbotsford NSW 2046 
PO Box 45 Five Dock NSW 2046 Australia

Phone: 02 9712 1199 Fax: 02 9712 3252

web: www.sydneyrowingclub.com.au


